Millennium Pacific
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
BB AT EMERERAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RHSEEEMMILIZERAT)
Stock Code B&{A1LSE : 8147




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group continued engaged in
the research and development, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products and provision of application software development services. We
provide one-stop services to our customers by offering design, prototyping/
sampling, manufacturing, assembling and packaging of their products.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

2021 is still a very challenging year. The emergence of several COVID-19
variants, such as Delta and Omicron, has weakened the effects of vaccines
and prolonged the pandemic, causing disruptions to global trade and business
operations. Various governments introduced lockdown measures to contain
the spread of the virus variants with mixed results. Consumers are picking up
new norms and different lifestyles amidst stringent social distancing measures
and extended lockdowns. This seriously affected spending desirability and
demand of the consumers, interrupted factory output, reduced material
supplies and logistic activities, leading to rapid and significant cost increases
which added further pressure to both the top line and margin to the
businesses of the Group and our associated companies. On the other hand,
there is no clear sign that the US-China tension is easing despite the impact of
the pandemic and change of the US presidency. Under such unfavourable
macro environment, we have to take prudent yet flexible approach to cope
with the challenges and changes.

Our revenue inevitably recorded a significant double-digit drop over the past
year. Yet we are committed to enhance our operational efficiency to mitigate
the unfavourable impact. In addition, we closely monitor our resources and
investments and reprioritize our focus. In particular, we shifted our focus to the
PRC domestic electronic consumer market in the third and fourth tier cities
during 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, sales on trading of electronic products, accessories and raw materials
remained as the Group’s the primary stream of revenue while we noted a
significant growth and contribution to the Group’s total sales revenue from
manufacturing of electronic products, as a result of the aforementioned shift of
focus. In mid-2021, we established a PRC subsidiary in Guangxi with local
partner to serve the domestic market there with notable results. Accordingly,
despite the drop in total overall revenue by 30.8% from HK$119.3 million in
2020 to HK$82.5 million in 2021 due to the unfavourable macro environment,
the revenue from manufacturing of electronic products increased by almost 4
times from HK$3.3 million in 2020 to HK$12.8 million in 2021. The gross profit
margin of the Group increased from 3.4% in 2020 to 4.9% in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 75 51 R
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Total operation-related expenses e ERRRXAE FExT FET
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO BHRA = 52
Administrative expenses THRAX
— Staff costs = 8 TR A 5,119 6,195
—  Depreciation of right-of-use assets* -  ERREENE 1,954 2,606
—  Written off of trade receivables - Jih £ FE U BR 3K - 2,856
— Others Eh 6,536 6,698
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables JRE LS AR SR ORR S 1B 7 B 503 (2,704)
Impairment losses on other receivables H U R IE R E 5 18 1,431 438
Other operating losses Hih & E e 250 750
15,793 16,891
# Excluding depreciation of right-of-use assets included in cost of sales # TEEFAFHEZKANZ ERREENE

Staff costs represented one of the major components of the Group’s
administrative expenses, which mainly consisted of directors’” emoluments,
salaries, retirement benefit scheme contribution and other benefits. Staff cost
decreased by 17.4% from HK$6.2 million in 2020 to HK$5.1 million in 2021.
The drop is primarily caused by the drop in notional share-based expense of
HK$1.5 million in 2021 as most of the previous granted share options had
been vested in prior years. The effect is partially offset by the additional staff
costs incurred for the newly operated Guangxi subsidiary.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased from by HK$0.6 million from
HK$2.6 million in 2020 to HK$2.0 million in 2021, mainly due to the
termination of lease of staff quarter to preserve the resources of the Group.

The total net impairment losses/written off of trade and other receivables
increased by HK$1.3 million from HK$0.6 million in 2020 to HK$1.9 million in
2021, mainly due to the increase in expected credit loss of trade receivables.

The total operation-related expenses decreased by HK$1.1 million from
HK$16.9 million in 2020 to HK$15.8 million in 2021, mainly due to () the drop
in abovementioned staff costs and depreciation of right-of-use assets; (ii)
general savings in administrative and operating expenses resulting from
tightened cost control; and (jii) partially offset by the aforesaid increase in the
total net impairment losses/written off of trade and other receivables.

Finance costs represented imputed interest on lease liabilities and convertible
bonds and interest on promissory notes. The drop is mainly due to the
decrease of imputed interest on convertible bonds of HK$0.8 million in 2021
as the old convertible bonds of HK$20 million, issued on 15 March 2019, was
expired on 14 March 2021 whereas the new convertible bonds of HK$20
million was issued on 2 July 2021. Details of the discussion of convertible
bonds and promissory notes are under the section of “Liquidity, Financial
Resources and Capital Structure”.
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Operation of Associates

Our associate, Celestial Rainbow Group, which has been equity accounted
for, mainly engaged in manufacturing and trading of electronic products, such
as fitness bracelets, targeting overseas market. Due to the aforesaid effect of
the pandemic and US-China trade tension, both the top line and margin of the
business were negatively impacted and its bottom line turned from positive to
negative. As a result, we recorded share of loss of associates of HK$2.0
million in 2021 whereas we recorded share of profit of HK$64,000 in 2020. In
addition, impairment of HK$8.0 million was made on its goodwill in 2021 in
view of the uncertainty and duration of the negative impact of the macro-
environment.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

Excluding the effect of impairment of goodwill, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$14.6 million in 2021, and
remained at a similar level to 2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE
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Below is a summary of the key financial ratio: TXREEHELLEME
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

Notes 2021 2020

HiaF —E-—fF —ECTEF
Current ratio mEN LR 1 1.32 1.20
Quick ratio BB R 1.26 1.16
Gearing ratio BEEEMILX 0.99 0.58
Notes: Bt
1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities 1. TENLL RIZBRRARBEERUG R A ETE

as at the respective period end

2. Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories by total 2. R RIZEEARERBDEERTFERNERBBETE

current liabilities as at the respective period end

3. Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity as at the respective
period end. For the avoidance of doubt, total debt includes liability component of
convertible bonds and lease liabilities.

Historically, the Group has funded its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, borrowings and funds from the listing
of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Group
requires cash primarily for working capital needs.

3. EEABETZERARCEBRABERSTE - AL
B SEEREIRRESsNAESESREEAE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR DM

Convertible Bonds and Promissory Notes

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 5 March 2019, the Company
issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000
with 4% interest per annum and two-year lifespan (the “2019 Convertible
Bonds”) to Radiant Assets Management Limited on 15 March 2019 under the
general mandate granted to the Directors by way of an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 June 2018. Assuming full conversion of the 2019 Convertible Bonds at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.045, the 2019 Convertible Bonds will be
convertible into 444,444,444 conversion shares. As a result of the share
consolidation of the Company becoming effective on 29 May 2019, the
conversion price of the 2019 Convertible Bonds had been adjusted from
HK$0.045 per old share to HK$0.36 per consolidated share and the number
of the conversion shares to be issued upon conversion of the 2019 Convertible
Bonds had been adjusted from 444,444,444 old shares to 55,555,555
consolidated shares. Details are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 5 March 2019, 15 March 2019 and 28 May 2019.
Approximately HK$10 million of the net proceeds from the subscription was
used for the repayment of the outstanding liabilities of the Group and
approximately HK$10 million was used for general corporate purposes,
including salary payments, rental payments, utilities and other operating
expenses as intended. The 2019 Convertible Bonds were expired and the
outstanding balance was fully repaid during 2021.

On 26 March 2021, the Company and Mr. Wu Xiongbin (“Mr. Wu”), an
independent third party, entered into a memorandum of understanding,
pursuant to which Mr. Wu was willing to subscribe for the Company’s
promissory notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (the
“2021 Promissory Notes”). The 2021 Promissory Notes would bear fixed
interest at 4% per annum and repayable in 2 years. After further negotiation,
the Company and Mr. Wu entered into the subscription agreement on 17 June
2021 that the Company shall issue convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 with 4% interest per annum and two-year lifespan
(the “2021 Convertible Bonds”) to Mr. Wu. On 2 July 2021, the 2021
Convertible Bonds were issued under the general mandate granted to the
Directors by way of an ordinary resolution of the shareholders passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 June 2020. Assuming full
conversion of the 2021 Convertible Bonds at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.12, the 2021 Convertible Bonds will be convertible into 166,666,666
conversion shares. The Company intended to use the net proceeds of
approximately HK$20 million from the subscription to repay outstanding
liabilities of the Group. Details are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 17 June 2021 and 2 July 2021. As at the date of this report,
approximately HK$20 million of the net proceeds was used to settle part of
the 2019 Convertible Bonds and other liabilities as intended.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately HK$2.6 million in
bank and cash balances (2020: HK$1.3 million). The Board kept monitoring
the cash level of the Group and would consider different ways of financing in
order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity, including but not
limited to issuance of bonds, obtaining additional financial assistance from
shareholders or Directors, negotiating new banking facilities and carrying out
further cost controls.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately nil and HK$27,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, respectively.

CHARGES ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any charges on
its assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong dollars and the functional
currencies of the Group’s entities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. A portion of the Group’s transactions are denominated
and settled in United States dollars, which has very limited exchange
fluctuation with Hong Kong dollars historically. The Group currently has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy and we will consider hedging
against significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arise.

LITIGATION

On 16 November 2020, the Company received a judgement issued by the
People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, pursuant to which, among
others, the Company shall repay to the plaintiff the outstanding rental of
approximately RMB0.63 million plus overdue interests and other costs. The
Company, appealed the above judgement to the Intermediate Court,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in December 2020.

The Company received a final judgement dated 3 November 2021 issued by
the Intermediate People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province which
rejected the appeal of the Company and upheld the original judgement issued
by the People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province. The Company had
recognised provision under other payables for the claim during the year ended
31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Saved for those disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR DM

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Strategic Cooperation Intention

On 23 May 2021, the Company and = & (& JI) & 17 & R 2 7] (Hui Zni
(Shenzhen) Technology Company Limited.*) entered into a non-legally binding
letter of intent for strategic cooperation in relation to developing the business
of providing online digital logistics services. Details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2021. As at the date of this
report, neither definitive agreement nor transactions had been consummated.

Saved for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other significant
investments held by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
there were no other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, there is no end in sight that the China-US tension will be
easing. It may even be more uncertain given the latest war between Ukraine
and Russia, with severe sanctions imposed by the Western nations to the
latter. The sanctions add further pressure and disruptions to global trade and
logistics. Rising prices for commodities, raw materials and electronic
components pose significant business challenges to us.

While the Group will continue to develop and expand its businesses as and
when appropriate, and to explore ways to improve its financial performance
and broaden the sources of revenue, it's the Group’s strategy to do so within
acceptable risk level and capital requirement. The Group will carefully take into
account the external factors such as the prolonged impact of COVID-19 and
the market trends like consumer demand, spending desirability and preference
under new norms and lifestyles, when selecting the appropriate product mix to
which the Group should focus and devote its resources. The Group considers
the PRC domestic markets, especially the household electrical appliances in
the third and fourth tier cities, are less vulnerable to the adverse macro-
environment, relative to the fast moving electronic consumer products/gadgets
in overseas markets. Taking into account the balance of investment risk,
capital requirement and familiarity with local environment, we established a
PRC subsidiary in Guangxi with local business partner to serve the markets
there. Leveraging on such network, we will continue to work with the local
partners and explore to serve the markets there through e-commerce
platforms, in response to growing online sales stimulated by the pandemic.
We also set up a wholly-owned subsidiary in Kashi, Xinjiang to explore the
business of online information and online publication services.

* For identification purpose only
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Or other hand, as part of its routine exer 0 rev i
the performance of its existing business portfolio and make suitable investment ~ BAAXH - WIEHA BB ERT - BERIER - BT
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position in the event that suitable fund raising opportunities arise. In these

regards, the Company will publish announcement as and when appropriate

according to the requirements under the applicable listing rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their report, together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Cayman
Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products and
provision of application software development services. The Group provides
one-stop services to our customers by offering design, prototyping/sampling,
manufacturing, assembling and packaging of their products

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as required under Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, is set out in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussion
forms part of this report of the Directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects would be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties including
business risks, operational risks and financial management risks. Details of
principal risks faced by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” Section of this
annual report. The details of financial risk management policies and practices
of the Group are set out in note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those mentioned
above which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

Key Performance Indicators
The key performance indicators are detailed in the Financial Review set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best of the knowledge of the
Board and the management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations which constitutes material impact on the business and operation
of the Company and its subsidiaries in all material respects during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group recognizes that employees are key assets of the Group and
endeavours to provide a caring environment to them with emphasis on team
spirit. We value on staff talents and believe that they can grow and develop
with the Group. The Group also maintains good relationships with our
customers and suppliers and continuously provides quality products to our
customers with the supplies from our established suppliers.

Environmental Policies

The Group strives to minimise its impact on the environment by reducing its
electricity consumption and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporate
environment that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. For
further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The analysis of geographical locations of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Details
of the segment information of the Group for the year are set out in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 140 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the state
of the affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 66 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity and
note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2021 was
Nil.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang

Mr. Wang Li

Mr. Wu Yong Fu (resigned on 31 August 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chong Yu Keung (resigned on 16 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang

Mr. Wong Tik Tung

Mr. Man Wai Lun (appointed on 26 July 2021)
Mr. Huang Jian (resigned on 30 June 2021)

The Company has entered into a service agreement with each of our current
executive Directors for an initial term of 3 years since appointment, and shall
continue thereafter and can be terminated by not less than 3 months’ prior
notice in writing. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years since
appointment, and shall continue thereafter from year to year until terminated
by 1 month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other party.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s articles of association, at
each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for the time being, shall
retire from office by rotation. In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s
articles of association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment. Accordingly, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang and Mr. Man Wai
Lun shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-elections. None of the Directors
proposed for re-elections at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

We actively refine our staff structure by adopting the human resources
philosophy of “grow and develop together” and offer reasonable yet
competitive compensation packages. The Group has developed a number of
rules and regulations on recruitment, dismissal, promotion and other benefits
and incentives, such as the grants of share options. We also make
contributions to statutory mandatory provident fund schemes to our qualified
Hong Kong employees and social security fund schemes operated and
managed by the PRC Government to our qualified PRC employees.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 45 employees (2020: 37).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION FOR THE BENEFIT
OF DIRECTORS

According to Article 191 of the Company’s articles of association, the
Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain. During the year, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of its legal action against
its Directors and remained in force as of the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, none of the
Directors and the Company’s chief executive had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including any interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

ESREFRITRAEBRA QR AREMEBEER LT
Bt - HRRORESTNERRLAE

RZFB=Z—F+=ZA=+—8  BESHMA" ﬁﬂﬁ§$&zﬁ
RNAIEBTRABRAAR REE EEEE (EEREF
REAE GG ([ #5 REE MM ) FEXVEL) 8 ERARD - 187
BRPKEHFFEEEREEZFRBERAIEXVEET R8H
BAEgRAAR BN EAERSIAR (BEREESFR
HEGREINE BESUR S S (E SR R A B E A oKk
B HRARRBREBEZEF LB RIIFEI2GATFEN
B AR EAEROAR - HIRIEGEM LR AIFES5.46
EEO7TIRFTM EBETAESETRINRELAASIT
MEARR R KRBT AIERSAR -

FERREEMALTREDTRG REER D
MRS R

REZBZ—F+-HA=1+—0 " TIAL(EEFHARFE
FITBABRINRARR BB RABEBR D P #EEELAR
BEEFRIEGRDIF B IFATFEMNELMANERTOAR

Capacity and
Name nature of interest
®E S RERME

Martford Limited (note 2)
Martford Limited (15 2)

Wu Xiongbin (note 3)
RIS (a2 3)

Pu Wei
THER

Zheng Lizhong
EpRI R

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA
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#e
KA EHER
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
shares issued share
Class of Shares (note 1) capital
LEE NG|
BRHEE ERITRAE
B4R (KtaE1) 2Bt
Ordinary shares 316,981,250 (L) 30.75%
TR
Ordinary Shares 174,469,166 (L) 16.93%
Ordinary Shares 88,008,000 (L) 8.54%
TR
Ordinary Shares 74,279,000 (L) 7.21%
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1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share
capital of the Company.

2. The 316,981,250 shares were held by Martford Limited which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Lianghai.

3. On 17 June 2021, Mr. Wu Xiongbin subscribed convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$20 million which can be convertible into 166,666,666
conversion shares at initial conversion price of HK$0.12 per conversion share.

Save as disclosed above and so far as is known to the Directors, as at 31
December 2021, no other interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Group, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its controlling shareholders or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company and the director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling shareholders or Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by the Group
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 20
June 2014 is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions that eligible participants (as defined therein)
have made or may make to the Group.

The Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in our Company with the view to achieving the
following principal objectives:

i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected
to be beneficial to our Group.

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme (the “Option”) to any of the following
persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

i) any Director, employee or officer of any company in our Group who is
employed by any company in our Group (whether full time or part time)
(the “Employee”), consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or a company in which
our Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Affiliate”); or

(ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any Director, Employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to our Group or an Affiliate; or

(iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to our Group or an Affiliate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Subject to the aforesaid limit, the number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted or to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company is 103,073,897 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued Shares as at 26 June 2020, being the date of
approval of refreshment of the existing scheme limit by the shareholders, and
as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
Options granted to an Eligible Participant (including exercised and outstanding
Options) in any 12-month (i.e. maximum entitlement) period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue from time to time, unless approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at
any time during a period as our Board may determine which shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

The acceptance amount for the option is determined by the Board from time
to time.

The exercise price per share under the Scheme (the “Exercise Price”) shall
be a price determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of:

i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities (the “Trading Day”);

(ii) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was up to 19 June 2024.

On 4 June 2019, it was resolved by the Company to grant 68,720,000 share
options with exercise price of HK$0.2412 per share entitling the grantees to
subscribe for 68,720,000 shares of the Company. Details are set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 4 June 2019.

As at 31 December 2021, 25,192,000 effective share options were
outstanding.
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TRETENHRE PR BREE R B8 8 RT

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s outstanding 1T1ERERR
options under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting Period. REEE o
No. of options
Granted  Exercised lapsed Exercise price
On  duringthe  during the during the On of the options
Date of grant 1Jdanuary  Reporting  Reporting Reporting 31 December Vesting Exercise period per share
of the options 2021 Period Period Period 2021 period of the options (HKD)
R BEAR R SHiERE
Name of grantee RRE ~g--% & #E 3 v k- Sl 3 TR
ARALA RHEH -B-8 ilatbe Bk BRE®E +-A=t-R 5RE BREGTES (B7m)
Mr. Wu Yong Fu 4 June 2019 6,756,000 - - (6,756,000) - N/A 4 June 2019- 02412
RAEEE “E2nE il 3June 2029
~AMA ZE-NERRMAZ
ZENFAAZA
Mr. Chong Yu Keung 4 June 2019 6,756,000 - - (5,756,000) - N/A 4 June 2019- 02412
HRETE “I-0E TR 3June 2029
~AmA ZE-NERARAZ
ZEINERAZH
Employees 4 June 2019 12,596,000 - - - 12,596,000 4 June 2019- 4 June 2020 - 0.2412
&8 ZE-NE 3June 2020 3June 2029
~ANA ZZ-NERREAZ  ZE-TE5AMAE
“E-FEAAZR ZECASNAZH
Employees 4 June 2019 12,596,000 - - - 12,596,000 4 Jung 2019 - 4 Jung 2021 - 0.2412
&E “E-nE 3June 2021 3June 2029
~AEA “Z-N\EXANRE —Z--%/:FmAZ
“Z--EXRZH ZEZCAERAZH
Total 38,704,000 - - (13,512,000 25,192,000
it
Notes: Btat -

(1) The options granted to the directors were vested immediately.

) The options granted to the employees have a vesting period of 2 years, i.e. one-
half of the options were vested on the first (1st) anniversary (round down to the
nearest option) and the remaining one-half of the options were vested on the
second (2nd) anniversary of the date of grant respectively.

) The details of the valuation model are set out in note 34 to financial statements.

The value of options are subject to a number of assumptions and limitations that
may be subjective and uncertain.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the Group, no
other equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the Group are
disclosed in “Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure” under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Share Option Schemes” under
“Report of the Directors”, respectively.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in
note 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, that would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the reporting period, the revenue from sales of goods or rendering of
services to the largest customer and the five largest customers of the Group
represented 57.3% and 89.8% of the total revenue of the Group, respectively.
The purchases from the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 56.4% and 92.5% of the total purchase of the Group,
respectively. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. These related party transactions does not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and no disclosure is accordingly
required.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Up to the date of this report, there was no event relevant to the business or
financial performance of the Group that came to the attention of the Directors
after the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

On 20 December 2019, World Link CPA Limited resigned as the auditors of
the Company due to its reorganization under which the audit engagement
director and the audit engagement team joining another professional
accounting firm. McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McM”) has
been appointed as the auditors of the Company with effect from 20 December
2019 to fill the casual vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by McM. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint McM as the auditors of the

Group.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Chuang Qiang
Executive Director

Hong Kong,
29 April 2022
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 57, has been an executive
director of the Company since 4 June 2019. Mr. Zhou is also the Compliance
Officer, Authorized Representative, a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Compliance Committee of the Company. He is also the director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He mainly engages in production management,
research and development management and marketing management. Mr.
Zhou has accumulated rich work experience in management and leadership
positions. Since 2017, he has served as the marketing manager and the
deputy general manager of Shenzhenshi Jingxingcheng Technology
Electronics Co., Ltd* (RYIIT @R EHEHXEFHRAFR]). From 2013 to 2017,
he was the deputy general manager of Shenzhenshi Keming Property

Investment Co., Ltd* (RYITTRI BB ZREBRAF]).

Mr. Wang Li (“Mr. Wang”), aged 34, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 17 July 2017. Mr. Wang holds a master’s degree issued by
Rutgers, the State University of New Jersey, majoring in quantitative finance.
Mr. Wang is currently the director of Leveraged and Acquisition Finance
Department of Haitong International Securities Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities Group Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 665)). Mr. Wang has
extensive experience in the area of merger and acquisition, listed company
corporate action and derivatives trading, and has participated in a number of
deals relating to such areas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Man Wai Lun (“Mr. Man”), aged 49, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 26 July 2021. He has been the
chairman of the audit committee; a member of the nomination committee and
compliance committee of the Company since then. Mr. Man obtained his
diploma in Business Management from the School of Continuing Education,
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2003 and obtained a bachelor degree of
accountancy from the University of South Australia in 2007. Mr. Man has over
16 years of experience in accounting. Mr. Man is currently also an executive
director of Life Healthcare Group Limited (stock code: 928), Century Group
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2113), and an independent non-
executive director of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 907) and Momentum Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 1152). He
was previously an executive director and compliance officer of Glory Flame
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8059) until 19 September 2018, an independent
non-executive director of Roma Group Limited (stock code: 8072) until 1
March 2020, an independent non-executive director of China Trustful Group
Limited (stock code: 8265 a listed company in Hong Kong from 26 January
2011 to 12 November 2021) until 9 November 2020 and an executive director
of CT Environmental Group Limited (stock code: 1363 a listed company in
Hong Kong from 25 September 2013 to 10 September 2021) until 19 April
2021. The above companies are all listed companies in Hong Kong.
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SREEEBEHE

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 51, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 17 July 2017. He has also been
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company since 31 July 2018. Mr. Zheng graduated from Jinan University, is
qualified as building construction management engineer. He has strong
leadership and management experience in the construction, real estate
investment, asset management fields. From 2003 to 2006, he was appointed
as the vice president of & M {22 1% & H R A &], being responsible for the
company’s real estate development and management, investment and
financing business; In 2006, he set up &M X M5 & EIEH R A A and
has acted as deputy general manager of the company which is engaged in
real estate development, asset management and other aspects.

Mr. Wong Tik Tung (“Mr. Wong”), aged 65, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 17 July 2017. He has also been the
chairman of the remuneration committee and compliance committee of the
Company and a member of each of the nomination committee and audit
committee of the Company since then. Mr. Wong, FCCA, CPA, has over thirty
years’ experience in the fields of accounting, auditing and financial
management. Being an accountant in Hong Kong, he is also a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Over the past years, Mr. Wong had taken directorships in the capacity of (i) an
executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 720)), (i) an independent non-executive
director of Chi Cheung Investment Company Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 112)) and (i) a non-executive
director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8059)).

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between each of

Directors and the senior management as required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and accountability,
and the Board considers that enhanced public accountability and corporate
governance are beneficial for the healthy development of the Group, improving
customer and supplier confidence. We believe that this can create long term
value for the shareholders of the Company and is beneficial for the Group’s
sustainable growth. Saved as disclosed below, the Company adopted and
complied with the principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group strives to achieve
sound corporate governance standards as far as practicable and utilizes our
resources efficiently and effectively.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHAIRMAN, MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group and its
business by leading and supervising the Company’s affairs. It is responsible
for determining the Group’s objectives, overall strategies and policies,
approving business plan, evaluating operating, instilling corporate culture and
financial performance. All the Directors should make decision objectively in the
interests of the Company. The overall responsibilities of the Board include
considering and making decisions on the following matters:

i) Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(v) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(v)  Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;
(vi)  Monitoring the performance of the Management; and
(viii)  Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.
The Board is also responsible for the corporate governance functions under
the paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code and will review and monitor the corporate
governance principles and practices to ensure compliance. It takes primary

responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established.
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Under the Board’s direction and supervision, the affair and daily management,
administration and operation of the Company are responsible by the executive
Directors and the senior management collectively. The delegated functions
and assignments are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by
the Management. The overall responsibilities of the Management include
considering and making decisions on the following matters:

i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies set by the Board;

(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(iii) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv) Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(v) Managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did
not have a designated chairman and following the resignation of the chief
executive officer, Mr. Lu Zhiming, on 6 December 2021, the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business is handled by the executive Directors
and the senior management collectively. The Board considers that the
principle of balance of power and authority is achieved by the check and
balance between the executive directors and the independent non-executive
directors and the functions and responsibilities of the chairman under code
provisions A.2.2 to A.2.9 are, in practice, delegated to a designated director.
We believe that the present arrangement is adequate to ensure an effective
management and control of the Group’s business operations and the Board
will keep monitoring and review the arrangement.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Due to conflicting business schedules, Mr. Huang Jian (“Mr. Huang”), who
was an independent non-executive Director at that time, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2021. He
resigned on 30 June 2021 as he decided to devote more time to his other
commitments and engagements. Mr. Man Wai Lun (“Mr. Man”) was
appointed on 26 July 2021 as a new independent non-executive Director and
the Company will strive to coordinate with Mr. Man for future compliance with
the code provision.
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Code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code provides that management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties under Rule 5.01 and Chapter 17 of the GEM Listing
Rules. In 2021, while the Company provided quarterly update to the members
of the Board, the Board held 17 Board meetings, spread over the year, and
was kept providing information and updates to the members of the Board as
and when appropriate. The Board will continue to review the arrangement and
the frequency of reporting to ensure timely update is provided. Where
necessary, all Directors can have access to all relevant information and obtain
the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Directors may, where
appropriate, seek independent professional advice to ensure compliance with
the procedures of the Board and all applicable rules and regulations, at the
Company’s expense.

Following the resignation of Mr. Huang on 30 June 2021, the then number of
independent non-executive Directors is less than three as required under Rule
5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Huang was also the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
the Compliance Committee of the Company. Following his resignation, the
Board was unable to fulfill the requirement of having a minimum of three
members on the Audit Committee under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirement of having not less than three members in the Nomination
Committee as per the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.
Following Mr. Man’s appointment on 26 July 2021, the number of independent
non-executive Directors complies with Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Also, the Company fulfills the requirement of having a minimum of three
members on the Audit Committee under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirement of having not less than three members in the Nomination
Committee as per the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRSE

BOARD COMPOSITION

Mr. Huang resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
30 June 2021 and Mr. Man was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 26 July 2021. Mr. Chong Yu Keung and Mr. Wu Yong Fu resigned
as a non-executive Director and an executive Director with effect from 16
August 2021 and 31 August 2021, respectively. Except for disclosed herein,
the composition of the Board has not been changed throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Board currently comprises 5 Directors,
including 2 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
and the Director’s details during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang

Mr. Wang Li

Mr. Wu Yong Fu (resigned on 31 August 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chong Yu Keung (resigned on 16 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang

Mr. Wong Tik Tung

Mr. Man Wai Lun (appointed on 26 July 2021)
Mr. Huang Jian (resigned on 30 June 2021)

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions has been
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
profiles of the Directors, including relationship between Board members, are
set out in the section “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy since 20 June 2014 and
reviewed its Board composition on a yearly basis. The policy sets out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Group’s business and compliance with policies. The nomination committee
reviews and monitors the implementation on the Board diversity policy
periodically and provides its recommendation to the Board. While participating
in the nomination and recommendation of director candidates, each member
may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional experience
in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various business
development and management. The Board should ensure that its changes in
composition will not result in any undue interruption and the Board members
should possess appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness
in performing their duties and functions. The Board would diversify its
members according to the Company’s situations and need, as well as taking
into account the revised CG code, such as that in relation to the gender
diversity. The Board diversity policy has been published on the website of the
Company up to the date of this annual report.
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Three of the Board members, representing 3/5 of the Board, are independent
non-executive Directors and at least one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, in
accordance with Rule 5.05(1)(2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. All of the
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of
three years and none of the independent non-executive Directors has served
the Company for more than 9 years. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent. All
independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications of the Company containing the names of the Directors.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with each of our executive
Directors for an initial term of three years. All the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s articles and association. At each annual general meeting, not less
than one-third of the Directors then in office shall retire and every Director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Directors who
are appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and are subject to re-
election by shareholders of the Company. Separate ordinary resolutions will be
put forward to the shareholders of the Company in relation to the proposed
re-election of each of the Directors.

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors are continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities by
the Company. Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Up to the date of this report, all Directors have confirmed to the Company that
they have participated trainings by attending seminars, conferences and/or
reading material, webcast, newspapers, journals and updates related to the
economy, the company’s business or directors’ duties and responsibilities.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiries in writing to
the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she had complied with
the Model Code in connection with the Company’s securities for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Company has also established written
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees (including the employees and Directors of
the subsidiaries or holding company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. In addition to
the circulation of 4 written board resolutions, there were 4 regular Board
meetings and other 13 Board meetings (including teleconference meetings)
held in 2021. The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit
committee meetings, remuneration committee meeting, nomination committee
meeting and general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out in the following table:

Annual
General
Name of member Meeting
RE#% BREBFAE

EE=ggE

EXe2FEHRETEE  ARERRRURKEENEE
RUBER RZT_—F RTIBEMH4HEEDESSAZ
TN BERITANEHESEEEZRBIMINEFTSEH (B
REReE) HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—RHLFE &
EENEEEEH  FREECLE FHEESEE IR
FLREGEHELIRRAG 2 HELHERNTX

Attendance record of meetings held in 2021
“EC-FRENSRNLRESR

Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Compliance
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
3¢ ENZEE  ¥MZEE  REEEE  ARZEE

Number of total meetings 1

gRaY

17 4 2 2 1

Number of Meetings attended/Total
BHEEHELNY/ B

Executive Directors

78S

Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang il
F8l%8 5L E

Mr. Wang Li il
TREE

Mr. Wu Yong Fu (resigned on 31 August 2021) 01
SAEEER-E--FENF=+-REH)

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Chong Yu Keung (resigned on 16 August 2021) il
HRRTAERITZ-F\A+AEET)

Independent non-executive Directors

BUkYES

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang il
ey

Mr. Wong Tik Tung il
THRREE

Mr. Man Wai Lun (appointed on 26 July 2021) NATER
NEBLE(R-F-—FLE- 1 REZT)

Mr. Huang Jian (resigned on 30 June 2021) 01
EREENZTZ-FXA=HHET)
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16/17 4/4 22 2/2 N/A T
1517 4/4 22 2/2 11
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an important part of sound corporate governance practices and for
supervision of the overall affairs of the Company in various areas, the Board
has established four Board committees, namely, the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the compliance
committee. All Board committees have respective specific terms of reference
clearly defining their powers and responsibilities, which are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made, and
where appropriate, can seek independent professional advice to perform their
duties at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 3 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang and Mr.
Wong Tik Tung and chaired by Mr. Man Wai Lun, with all members being
independent non-executive Directors of the Company in full compliance with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 4 Audit Committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this annual report.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(i) Appointment of the Company’s auditors
(@  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

(c)  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor”
includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the quarterly (if
any), interim and final audits and any matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Board and
other employees of the Group at the discretion of the Audit
Committee where necessary).

(i) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission
to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:
(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

) major judgmental areas;

©)) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

5) compliance with accounting standards;

6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(7) any connected transactions and their impact on the
profitability of the Company;

8) items requiring disclosure; and

(9)  the cash flow position;
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(iii)

32

regarding point (a) above:

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
report and accounts, it should give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors.

Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures

(@)

()

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;
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to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

to report to the Board on the matters in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for employees
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company; and

to review the disclosure in the Company’s interim and annual
reports regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial
actions.

Major accomplishments of the Audit Committee in 2021 comprised the
following:

(@)

reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly,
half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if any;

reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting functions of
the Group;

reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2020 and the letter of representation to be given by the
Board; and

considered and approved the 2020 external audit fees and
engagement letters.
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The Board has conducted annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2021 through the Audit Committee. For details, please refer to the
section of “Risk Management and Internal Control” of this Corporate
Governance Report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and recommended approval to
the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (‘“Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of 3 Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang and Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang, and
chaired by Mr. Wong Tik Tung.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this report.

The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration, of
which a significant portion of Executive Director’s remuneration should
link rewards to corporate and individual performance, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(ii) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(iii) either (a) to determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; or
(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;
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(vi)

(vil)

(vii)

()

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and its subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration;

to advise the Company to disclose details of any remuneration payable
to members of senior management by band in its annual reports; and

to advise the shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Major accomplishments of the Remuneration Committee in 2021 comprised
the following:

U

reviewed matters relating to the contract terms and remuneration
packages and emoluments of Directors and senior management,
including the newly appointed ones.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of 3 Directors, namely Mr.
Zheng Wan Zhang, Mr. Man Wai Lun and Mr. Wong Tik Tung, and chaired by
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 2 Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this annual
report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

0} to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors when such are
tendered and to make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy
of the nominees, having regard to the Board’s compositional
requirements and suitability of the nominees;

(iv)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
Independent Non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the reasons why they consider him to
be independent; and

(V) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors, and succession planning for Directors.
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The Nomination Policy is summarized as below that stipulates the key
nomination criteria and principles of the Company for the nomination of
directors and provides what the committee should do in order to give effect to
this policy:

(i) review and monitor the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
on an annual basis and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(ii) identify and nominate qualified individuals for appointment as additional
directors or to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise. The criteria
to be adopted by the Board in considering each individual shall be their
ability to contribute to the Board;

(iii) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular, the chairman and the chief executive officer; and

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board with particular regard to ensuring
a substantial majority of the directors on the Board being independent
of management.

Major accomplishments of the Nomination Committee in 2021 comprised the
following:

i) reviewed and monitored the structure, size and composition of the
Board; and

(ii) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board regarding the newly
appointed Director.

Compliance Committee

The Company has established a compliance committee (“Compliance
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Compliance Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Compliance Committee is currently composed of 3 Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang and Mr. Man Wai Lun, and chaired
by Mr. Wong Tik Tung.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1 Compliance Committee meeting

was held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 of this annual
report.
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The role and functions of the Compliance Committee include:

U

(i)

i)

()

(vi)

(vil)

(vii)

()

to establish, maintain and approve the compliance system of the
Group;

to support and provide instruction to ensure that each department to
establish, execute and maintain its compliance system;

to approve the compliance manual and ensure it is updated;

to organise education and training programmes on compliance,
including compliance seminars;

to monitor the status of the compliance system and discuss from time
to time with relevant management members on the compliance system
to ascertain what action, if any, is required for ongoing compliance;

to investigate compliance problems and take appropriate measures
when one arises (it may instruct the relevant department(s) to deal with
the problem depending on its nature);

to delegate the day-to-day implementation and monitoring of
compliance system to the compliance offer and company secretary;

to review and monitor the ongoing compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant laws and regulations;

to note any material deficiencies and take remedial actions if necessary
and at all times keep the Board abreast of any such actions and/or
developments; and

to review the disclosures in the Company’s interim and annual reports
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions.

Major accomplishments of the Compliance Committee in 2021 comprised the
following:

U

(i)

38

reviewed the disclosures in the Company’s 2020 annual report
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any; and

reviewed the disclosures in the Company’s 2021 interim report
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the Group and
has full authority to maintain the soundness and effectiveness of the internal
control system and risk management procedures of the Group to ensure
efficient and effective use of the Group’s resources to assist the Group in
achieving its operation objectives, safeguarding the Group’s assets and
ensuring compliance with laws and regulations.

The Group emphasizes the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures. The
Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the business
objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the
Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable
assurance in relation to protection of material assets and shareholders’
interests. During the year under review, an external independent consultant
has reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to identify,
assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risk
associated with each business or transaction. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides technical
support, develops new system and oversees portfolio management. It ensures
risks are within acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the third line of defense, the external independent consultant assists the
review of the first and second lines of defence. The Group is committed to the
identification, evaluation and management of risks associated with its business
activities through ongoing assessment of a risk register, by considering the
likelihood and impact of each identified risk. The Group has implemented an
effective control system which includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, a sound management system and periodic review of the
Group’s performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the external independent consultant,
engaged to review the Group’s internal control systems and recommend
actions to improve our internal controls, has provided written reports to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience, training and budget of the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions on an annual basis.
Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was generally effective.

Based on the above, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group pursuant to
C.2.1 of the CG Code, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls, and considers them generally effective and adequate in
all material respects. With a view of further enhancing the Group’s internal
control system on an ongoing basis, the Group will continue to engage
external professional advisers to conduct review and consider to establish a
formal in-house internal audit department where necessary from time to time,
taking into account the development of the business and the scale and
complexity of our operation in future.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ EE #{ 4 2021

[ B B e A ER R IR
EEGUAKENARERBARKEM W2 RERA
SERNEERGRAREEEF 2 RAY - ERAGR
ERAMaN T LA AR EEERA GBI AN R B KR B
B REREEEE  ARBERTSEBEGRAR

AEBEERP2ONMEZRS  WBTRAKERS T Z
BEBRAARRZ —R - AERERIABEZERREELEX
RSB A BEWIRE 2 RE - UREBRERE
BRGWERAREEREBBENRR - EESHERIA
MER RS UWHREEREZEREERREBRIRES T E
BERHEEMARZABRE  REEFE  INEBLER
EHAEE N EREE R AIPEERFELRE - REHR
M=MERERIDEABS - FHEREETFBRE MR
EE—BR  ¥BECAERN  SMEREREFHEER
AR HEMOER - (ERE _ENHLR  ERERTHRAES
R ARA) RS FT - BIERHE REFRASEE - WhE
RERERIZEZBEANRE —BIRITZER - ERE=E
Prsx - SMERE SRR BB S B R E B AR - AEE
FBEREZECHEARN AT RTE - A ERRE
RO - BOOEG - G R EEEERRSAMER - KK
BOETERMERERSR  BEARBTRESENTIER
B RBENEERGAAEZZRERESETHRIAE
R R -

BE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE IMNEBIER(R
HE S 7R S5 (8] B R B BE 2 AT 1 AR R I A AR A I BB B 1R HY
Bt ENBEREEGEHERER - BREEGNERF
EEERHER  NEBET LM BRERETENER - 8
TEFRNEER IR EREEEE RSN - RERT - FX
ZEeRR  TARENAEEE RGREREYUERE -

HER BN EFSCRECEERTAEC21{FHA
SEMEREEMAEZERSNARIEETR  RESE
AW BERARER  YRARSEAESENTHE
ABHEIESD o RS — F e AR E A MR EIE R 4T
AEBEBREAREBOBERARKMSENRERE
1t BEINEEXBERETRI LR E RN ERRTIE
R AR AT #RPT ©

39



Inside Information

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered inside
information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. The executive Directors
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be
issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to
time. The Company has put in place procedures on handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not
to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest available
information. The Company has appropriate internal control and reporting
systems to identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing the
relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
according to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, which are prepared on a going
concern basis. Such responsibility of the Directors, and the responsibilities of
the auditors in respect of the consolidated financial statements are set out in
the report of the auditors of this annual report. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and recommended approval to the Board.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
(“McM”) whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The audit committee has recommended the Board
the reappointment of McM as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A breakdown of the remuneration paid/payable to the
external auditors (including its affiliates) of the Company in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided to the Company during the year is set out below:
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Fees

BH

(HK$’000)

Items BHE (F#&m)
Audit services (including the review of BERS (BRIEBHEE YT EER)

quarterly/interim financial information) 670

Non-audit services L BURTS 140

Total 45T 810

Note: The amounts did not consider prior years’ underprovision/overprovision.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ngan Wai Kam, Sharon (“Ms. Ngan”) who is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and was appointed as the Company Secretary on 17 July 2017 as
external service provider to assist the Board and the primary contact person
of the Company is its executive Director, Mr. Zhou Chuang Qiang. Ms Ngan
has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2021 in compliance
with Rules 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Ms Ngan resigned on 31 December 2021. Mr. Wong Kwok Chung, an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 31 December 2021. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy concerning the payments of dividend. The
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits
with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined or
recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute discretion after
taking into account the Company’s financial results, future prospects and
other factors, and subject to:

the Articles of Association of the Company;

— the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of the
Cayman Islands;

— any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company is
bound from time to time;

— the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and

any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

The Board may consider distributing special dividend to all shareholders, and
the amount of which shall be determined and approved by the Board at its
absolute discretion. Under the Cayman Islands Companies Act and the
Articles of Association of the Company, all of our shareholders have equal
entitlement to dividends and distributions. The Board shall have the right to
review the dividend policy from time to time as it deems fit according to the
financial and business development requirements of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

There are no provisions governing shareholders’ rights to put forward
proposals or move resolutions at a general meeting under the constitutional
documents of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders
who wish to put forward proposals or move a resolution may however,
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the
Board by following the procedures below. Procedures for Shareholders to
convene an EGM (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
EGM) to be called by the Board:

i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

When necessary, Shareholders can send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Group’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. Shareholders are also
encouraged to participate in general meetings. Board members, appropriate
management and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to
answer Shareholders’ questions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders, including the
holding of forthcoming general meetings and corporate communications
published on the Stock Exchange and information disclosed in the Company’s
website.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year. A consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the Company’s website and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE  HERERERS

*

BACKGROUND

The Group is principally engaged in research and development,
manufacturing and sale of consumer electronic products, such as
fitness bracelets, GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet
devices and TV set-top boxes and provide an internet trading platform.

The Group’s manufacturing process was catered by Shidai JiuFang
(Shenzhen) Electronic Technology Co., Limited* (“Shidai Jiufang”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, and Huisi
Appliance (Guangxi) Company Limited* (“Huisi Guangxi”), an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company set up in the PRC during
the Year. Shidai Jiufang and Huixi Guangxi are principally engaged in
the research, development and manufacturing of electronic devices, 3C
products and household appliances in Shenzhen City and Guangxi
Province, respectively. This report will focus on Shidai Jiufang and Huixi
Guangxi as their business activities are most relevant to the
environmental and social aspects of the Group.

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders in a
balanced way. The Group is pleased to present the environmental,
social and governance report (the “ESG” report) for the year ended 31
December 2021 (“2021” or “Year”) for the purpose of demonstration of
its efforts on sustainable developments to the stakeholders.

This ESG report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
the Appendix 20 to the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts,
namely environmental and social. This ESG report has been prepared
to cover the ESG performance of the Group’s operating entities.

The basis of reporting principles — materiality, quantitative and
consistency:

° “Materiality” Principle: The Group determines material ESG issues
by stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment.

. “Quantitative” Principle: Information is presented with quantitative
measure, whenever feasible, including information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

o “Consistency” Principle: The Report will use consistent
methodologies for meaningful comparisons in the past years
unless improvements in methodology are identified.

For identification purpose only

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ EE #{ 4 2021

*

B

AEBTZUETE  SERKEHEETER ©
WS FIR - GPSEAEMRE  BEERRE -8
BHRIRZARRHEERBESHFE

RER - AEBENEERFHAR R R BRI —
BRE2EMBARBRNAT CRYD EFRRER
AR(TERAT D) RRFBEKRIN—HEZER2E
MEARESER(EE) BRAR ([ERERE])
& BRATREREATIEREDRIRFERIK
EREETEFRE CEMRKMABRNTEN
& - AEBEIMESRNTT RERER - A
MEEREBEAKERE Mt 2 0B &/AEM -

ARARE
REBEAHE R AMEFRERERERE  1E
RACERN - B AU BEEBRELEM - REER
ARMFEBAERSBEE -2 - —F+-_A=1+—H
FFE(=Z=—F IR FEDNERR g RE
SEHRE ([ESG e ) MR REGEAHERRE T
RS -

ARESG #5181 L iR AIM SR20 FARSE VRS - 4L
SREABEHIBY - SABFRUEWESS -
IRURESGHE B (A B4 M B R BIESGR -

RERAWEE - BEN - E(CR—BIE:

. B2 RA: AEEBRMNEHEE 2R
REZUFEETEEKNESGEIR

. [E1] RA: EEMATERLT  HKRMEL
HIEERER - BREENMEE 5 AR
BB LLREIENE R

. [—2UE] REN - BRIECHEE J70A EROOE -
BRI E KE R — BTN AL B R FET
BEEENLE -

EE#EIZ

43



44

BOARD STATEMENT

As a group listed in the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Group
undoubtedly places a strong emphasis on growth and development so
as to transform to a scalable enterprise. Notwithstanding such
emphasis, the Board is fully aware that the duly performance of our
responsibilities relating to ESG are key to our sustainable development
and plays a primary role in overseeing the Group’s ESG issues. The
Board approves environmental goals and social goals for the
sustainability of the Group’s business. We strive to align our long term
corporate development with environment and society.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy. The
ESG working team, reporting to the Board, identifies ESG issues and
risks posed to the Group and evaluates the impacts of ESG-related
risks towards our operation. In managing the priorities, the team takes
into account the relevant materiality assessment and focuses on those
ESG issues that would have significant impact and risks and within the
parameters agreed by the Board. The team formulates ESG policies in
dealing with the relevant material risks. Balancing the cost against
returns, we endeavour to integrate social and environmentally friendly
measures into our daily operations where practicable. The team
compiles ESG issues which are (a) identified internally from our
operations, and (b) collated externally from our stakeholders. Data from
relevant material risks is gathered and KPIs are created to set
practicable targets. The team manages relevant material risks by
regularly monitoring the KPIs against the targets.

The oversight of the Board ensures that the team can have all the right
tools and resources to deal with the ESG issues. The team updates to
the Board at the regular meetings with the progress and the status of
achieving the KPI targets, the environmental goals and the social goals.
The Board reviews and monitors the team’s reporting, ensuring that the
requirements from the Board are met. All of the operations and
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries, subject to the relevant
material identified, are under the scope of review and assessment. As
the business evolves, we continue to pay attention to the compliance
status of ESG-related rules and regulations and identify new ESG
issues.
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4  MATERIALITY MATRIX
During the Year, the Group has evaluated a number of environmental,
social and operation related issues, and assessed their importance to
stakeholders and the Group through various channels. This assessment
helps to ensure the Group’s business development is in line with the
expectations and requirements of its stakeholders. The Group’s and its

EEMER

RER - AREFE T ZERRE - g K2R
R - WS ERERE T % S M R A 5 A
ERAKENERE o LT EA BN ERARERZE
BERNTEENSHBEENPHERER - AEERE
S ERAEN I FRAEATER BRI

stakeholders’ matters of concern are presented in the following
materiality matrix:

Importance to the Group
HASENSEEMS
Low Medium High
&® i =
High € Anti-discrimination Talent management Customers’ satisfaction
] RIUER A ER Level
@ Protecting labour rights Staff training and promotion BEPWEE
RELBET opportunity Anti-corruption
BTHIIRE S K&
Staff compensation and welfare Product quality and safety
5 policies EREERELE
§ ﬁ 8 TN R AE R Suppliers management
2 g B
1) e Occupational health and
*g % workplace safety
S W BERERTFEHZE
5 &
= Medium > Community involvement Use of resources Operational compliance
+ e i &R A HEER
Protecting customers’ privacy
REEPEL
Air emissions
FERBE
Low & Preventive measures for child Non-hazardous wastes Use of raw materials
1K and forced labour produced JRMFHE A
TR E T K oRi8 S BRI IE FEANBEREEY Hazardous wastes produced
FELNBEREREY

< Environmental ¥3% ¢ Employee & & > Operation ‘& &
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The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Guide to be
assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be material to the

Group.

ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
ESG1E5| i3I ESG EH

T BFIESG I 3| A A B E R R R
B R EEE B A ESG B -

Material ESG issues for the Group
HASEBEE AWESGEIE

(A)  Environmental
@ RE
Al Emissions
Al B
A2  Use of Resources
A2 EREHA
A3 Environment and Natural Resources
A3 RIBERBAER
(B)  Social
B HE
B1 Employment
Bl (Ef#
B2  Health and Safety
B2 REEZR
B3  Development and Training
B3 & NME
B4  Labour Standards
B4 HBIIRE
B5  Supply Chain Management
Bs ftEEER
B6  Product Responsibility
B6 EmAE
B7  Anti-corruption
B7 R&S
B8  Community Investment
Bs itEm&m
ENVIRONMENTAL

Emission from town gas or Vehicle
BRI TE MR

Use of energy and paper
BEIR I AR A A

Labour practices

BITEHR

Workplace health and safety

TYEHMERET S

Employee development and training

8 TR &

Anti-child and forced labour

IEE T eksaiE 558

Supply chain management

Hrepen

Product responsibility

EmEE

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
RES - B IEEREE R ROE B

Community programs, employee volunteering and donation

HEREY  BTITRRBRED

A. EBE

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. The
Group has proactively looked for and implemented new technology at
various stages of production in order to minimise its impact on the
environment. The Group’s products are designed to be safe and
environmental friendly for customer use, meaning recyclable and safe to
dispose materials are specified in its designs, and clean production
processes are adopted in its manufacturing process. Moreover,
unnecessary packaging that can cause harm to environment is not
introduced into its products.

The Group considers environmental protection an essential component
of sustainable and responsible business. The Group strive to negate
impacts on the environment and to seek environmentally friendly
methods of operation. Given the nature of the Group’s business,
electricity is the most significant resources consumed in the office in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

RRERER/RAEENZLEEL — - AREEES
B WHEEMRNE ERREFENRMN - AREEERS
MFE - AREERNIRATPREITH L2 NIRRNE
o SRR EEREFARASUERERZSE
BREMHNESUREEEERRTRABEREET
o o TUBMBREGHRBEMRBIR - L
SHEMETTUENEBE -

AEERBRATHESREBROLELNERE
5o AEERBHSOHEESROEELE - LBR
BIRBERR - N AEBNEHUEER  BTHE
B B R RS AR -
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The Group have narrowed down to the following key areas where it
should exert the effort on:

o Usage of resources from the operations;
° Energy consumption; and
° Indoor environmental quality.

The Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report the efforts in reducing
carbon footprints, promote waste reduction at source, enhance its
waste disposal management and set targets on environmental
performance. To minimise the environmental impacts concerning the
activities, products and services, the Group will:

o Comply with applicable legal requirements and other
requirements which relate to the Group’s environmental aspects,
and to which the Group subscribes;

o Identify environmental impacts associated with the operations
and set the targets to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

o Prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimise the consumption
of resources from all daily operations and actively promote
recycle, reuse and replace;

o Educate, train and motivate employees to develop a social
viewpoint that enables them to conduct business activities in an
environmentally responsible manner.

A1.1. Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption

For Hong Kong office operations, the key environmental impacts
from the Group’s operations related to energy and paper
consumption. To achieve environment protection, the Group
encourages employees to shift to e-statement or scanning to
reduce the use of paper and greenhouse gas emissions; to
switch off all computers and office equipment and air-conditioner
at the end of each working day.

The Group has integrated environmental objectives into the
business decisions in a cost-effective manner. The Group has
required all staff to assume environmental responsibilities in
normal operating procedures and has enhanced the awareness
of environmental and resource efficiency issues amongst the
customers, staff and stakeholders. All important green and
quality assurance policies have been posted on the notice board
and stated in the standard operating procedures of the
manufacturing plant.
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a) The Company did not have town fuel and town gas
consumption during the Year.

b) The Company did not have motor vehicles during the
Year, therefore no emissions data in relation to gaseous
fuel consumption of motor vehicles applied.

A1.2. Greenhouse Gas Emission

The table below highlights its carbon footprint during the Year:

Q)  AATERLEEERERER -

b) ARRRFALEHEEE - EHIALE
HTEAANERARBNEDERT I RE
IZ -

A2 BERBHKE

TREMFERERFARNHR R

KPI
BRERIEE
2021 Unit %

—E-—f B %
Scope 1
HE1
Direct Emission - Kg -
HEBEW T
Scope 2
E2
Indirect Emission 166,536 Kg 99%
TR T
Scope 3
#E3
Other indirect Emission 480 Kg 1%
H b B HER T
Total 167,016 Kg 100%
st F5=

During the Year, there is 167,016kg of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation.

Total number of staff as at 31 December 2021 is 45. The annual
emission intensity was 3,711 KgCO,e/staff.

The Group set the targets to 200,000kg of GHG emission for the
Year. The Group has achieved the target during the Year.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations:

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste of the Group during the Year. In addition, no significant
fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.

FR - AEENEER167,016 TR _A1t
BMEEZRERB(ZTEBE ALK Fi
REALTA) ©

RZZEZ—F+_A=+—H BEIRLAEA
45% - FEHMRE A3, 711 TR_&/tixE
g/8T-

AEBBFANBEERESREEZT A
200,000 F 5 + ANEBRFRDEZR I BIZ ©

HTFIERERREM

FA - AEBEXTAEE EFEREERBBE
BRERMAERERIMOREREHN - Ak Rkt
WEBES - BEREEBRRYMEL T EEK
BEAPENER - 1O FRAESHEARE
STERBDAR KOAR MR AB RS AL T
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A1.3. Hazardous and non-hazardous Waste

A2.1.

A3.

The Group generates no hazardous waste in its operation. Non-
hazardous waste from use of electricity of the Group’s operation
but the management of the Group believed that is insignificant
waste.

Use of resource

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection programmes. In particular, a number of initiatives
designed to conserve resources were introduced to promote
employee awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources.

The Group has been encouraging employees to establish energy-
saving habits in the office, such as switching off lights and
electronic appliances before leaving the office, as well as setting
indoor temperature at 25.5°C.

During the Year, the energy consumption by type in total of the
Group are showed as below:

A13. EEREEZEEY

A2.1

AEENSEYERELFEEERY - AKERN
EEFTRENSELEERRY  BFKEE
BEERRERNATERX °

.ERER

REERNR AR EEE X ESH RS

VEE - YXRRREE - BHE AKED
HHESHEEHOERNE - NESESE
RN AERNERER

AEE-EHEREEEERAZTHEEE - 7
MRBERM A EATBAME LR ER - WEER
REBBL5BERE -

RER - REBATEER BERIZER A B2
REATE

KPI

BRENIER
2021 Unit
—E-—F B
Total energy consumed FrBfEm B = 199,039 kWh
TR
Total number of staff BETHAH 45 staff
8T
Electricity consumed per staff HEZETFMEREMNESN 4,423 kWh/staff
FERE BT

The Group set targets to 240,000 kWh of energy consumption
during the Year. the Group has achieved the target during the
Year.

Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group has established a series of policies, mechanisms and
measures on environmental protection and natural resources
conservation to enhance its efficiency in the usage of energy,
water and materials and also complies with relevant local
environmental regulations and international general practices,
with an aim to reduce the use of natural resources and protect
the environment.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations during the Year.
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A4. Climate change
Global climate change is getting worse and global warming has
been a serious problem. The Group, as a responsible enterprise,
endeavoured to introduce measures as far as practicable, such
as those mentioned in A2.1 above, to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from business operations.

To cope with extreme weather conditions, the Group takes
precautionary and protective measures including, where
necessary, home office arrangement, work schedule
rearrangement and redeployment of resources, to ensure the
safety of employees, to minimize the impact on business process
and to avoid any physical damages to assets of the Group.

SOCIAL

Being a responsible business and employer, the Group are committed
to consistently looking for ways to meet the corporate social
responsibilities. The Group focuses on its staff, environment and
community as well as its business partners.

B1. Employment and Labour Practices

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human
capital and provides competitive remuneration and welfare
packages. Promotion opportunities and salary adjustments are
benchmarked against individual performance. Employees are
entitled to benefits such as annual leave, sick leave, maternity
leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical coverage in
accordance with local regulations.

The Group emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion
and other terms of employment. The Group is committed to
providing a work environment free from any form of discrimination
on the basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual
orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the
employees with different genders, ages, skills, educational
backgrounds, industry experiences and other qualifications in
order to achieve the most suitable composition and balance.
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The Group’s remuneration package is structured with reference
to the individual performance, working experience and prevailing
salary levels in the market. In additional to basic salaries and
mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong office staff, fringe
benefits include a basic five-day working week, flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner.

The Group has developed an employee handbook in accordance
with the Labour Law of the PRC and has distributed it to all
employees. The remuneration policies are determined on the
basis of performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. The remuneration generally includes salaries and
allowances.

The Group had subscribed to those basic pension insurance,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational
injury insurance, maternity insurance as prescribed by the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC, as well as housing fund schemes as
prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Fund.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are
made not less than the local government’s minimum
requirements. The normal working hours for general employees
are normally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week. Integrated
computation of working hours is implemented with reference to
the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Staff Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 45
(2020: 37) staff, including operational office, sales and marketing,
and back office division. All staff members are allocated in Hong
Kong and Mainland China.
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(a) Employee’ s Employment Type Distribution

@ EENHEMERS G

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
Male Female Male Female
By employment type RERELES B M B 7
Full-time employment 2B E R 69% 31% 59% 41%
Part-time employment FRE B 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total “wEt 69% 31% 59% 41%
(o)  Employee’ s Age and Gender Distribution ) EEFRERMRSMH
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-F
Male Female Male Female
Age Group FiRAR B M B 7
0-15 0-157% 0% 0% 0% 0%
16-18 16-18 5% 0% 0% 0% 0%
19-30 19-30 5% 11% 4% 3% 3%
31-45 31-457% 40% 27% 39% 33%
46 - 60 46-60 7%, 16% 0% 14% 5%
61 or above 61 el bA 2% 0% 3% 0%
Total W=t 69% 31% 59% 41%
()  Employee’ s Geographical and Gender Distribution © I(EEMERMRSH
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-F
Male Female Male Female
By geographical it EE 5 B zH B Eeg3
Hong Kong B 16% 7% 29% 0%
Mainland China AR B At 53% 24% 30% 41%
Total FEE 69% 31% 59% 41%

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and caring
environment to employees to raise their sense of belonging and

work efficiency in the Group.

AEERHEARERRHABTEARENT
FREURTRERASBNGERBEL TIEX
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B2.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on
the Group during the Year. In addition, no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant fines or
sanctions had been reported during the Year.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. The Group seeks to
attract and retain talented employees through providing a safe
and healthy workplace for each and every employee in line with
established internal guidelines and systems.

For Hong Kong office staff, the Group provides its employee with
flexible rest leave arrangement, medical and hospital scheme.
The Group understands that a good working environment for its
employees with a safe and comfortable working condition is very
important. The Group has set a clear guideline of work
arrangement for typhoon and rainstorm warning.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (Covid-19), has become
the latest challenge for the health authorities in Hong Kong and

Mainland China, the Group has several policy to protect its staff:

— All public area would be performed disinfection on timely
basis;

— Provide mask and disinfection supplies to all staff;
— Request all management provide mask himself/herself;

— Request all staff to perform body temperature test
everyday;

— Request each staff to report their health status everyday;
and

— Request each Department Head to monitor the health
status of its staff on timely basis.
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B3.

B4.

During the Year, there was no occurrence of any fatal accident.

(a) Occupational Health and Safety Data

FR - WEBEERIETEEL -

@ BEBERZEZHUE

2021 2020 2019
Health and Safety BERZZ —E-—F —ECEH —E-NEF
Number of work-related fatalities ETERERMIET M AZ 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to work injury TEBEARTERE 0% 0% 0%

During the Year, the Group has had no non-compliance
cases regarding violation of relevant laws and regulations
on occupational health and safety.

Development and Training

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education and
training to its employees in order to enhance their knowledge
and skills. All employees are encouraged to enhance their skills
and knowledge at every opportunity in order to perform their
current job more efficiently and effectively and to be better
prepared for career opportunities which may arise. During the
Year, regular training courses were provided to the employees
included but not limited to orientation training, technical training
and quality training.

Performance evaluations are initiated each year. Recognising the
value in the skill and experience of our staff, the Group has
adopted a policy that any promotions will be considered internally
first before hiring any outside staff. It is the Group’s policy to
select the most suitable candidate for appointment to a higher
rank based on merit, rather than on the seniority of the
candidates.

Labour Standard

The Group fully understand that the exploitation of child and
forced labour are universally prohibited, and therefore take the
responsibility against child and forced labour very seriously. The
Group strictly comply with all laws and regulations against child
labour and forced labour in Shenzhen, PRC.

For entry registration, all employees must present valid
documents to the PRC office as follows: (i) identity card and
vocational qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (iii)
medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other
relevant information and documents required by the Group. The
above procedures can ensure no child labour will be employed in
manufacturing plant.

B3.

B4.
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B5.

All employees of the PRC office are entitled to have sick leave,
injury leave and maternity leave with medical proof in accordance
with the Labour Law of PRC and Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Labour Rights and Interests and other applicable
regulations. In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily
and are not encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is
required, the relevant employees and superior will agree mutually
in written form. The compensation for overtime work is in
accordance with the provisions of the Labour Law of PRC.

During the Year, the Group has had no non-compliance cases
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour
laws.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
that govern its business. The Group always adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased
procurement processes when dealing with suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and
implements the value of honesty, integrity and fairness in its
supply chain management. The Group’s procurement
procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation and
engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and services
to ensure business is conducted with legally, financially and
technically-sound entities. In addition, approval procedures are in
place to ensure that supplier engagements are monitored and
approved by the appropriate level of management.

Where ever possible, the Group compares the price with the
different suppliers, evaluates the quality of the raw materials or
machinery and confirms the qualifications of the suppliers before
making contracts, in order to ensure the quality of the raw
materials and machinery under an acceptable price. The Group
strives to ensure that their suppliers uphold similar stance in
sustainability. The Group also tends to maintain long-term
relationship with its suppliers for ensuring a stable supply of
materials or goods. During the Year, the Group carried out a
regular review on their current suppliers and assess other
alternative potential suppliers. Where ever possible, the Group
would tend to suspend cooperation with suppliers if significant
deterioration was found in the supplier’s quality: this ensures that
suppliers conform to the Group’s standard.
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B6.

When choosing a new supplier, the Group give priority to the
suppliers who are environmentally friendly and socially
responsible in order to promote and support environmentally
preferable products and services in supply chain.

Performance of suppliers impose direct impact on the
sustainability of the Group’s operation. The Group implements
the procedures on selection of suppliers strictly to minimize both
the environmental and social risks of the Group’s supply chain. A
systematic supplier management mechanism has been set up to
closely monitor the performance of suppliers. As at 31 December
2021, the Group has 9 major suppliers.

EHR IR - AEBELEBARER
Rt gEENGER - NEHREEPHEERS
FRRIREE f MBRTS ©

HEANKRERVEAKRELENTHER
RBREN - ARBEBEATHERRERF &
AREREASEHERE T ANRRILER
- ARBEERIYRSHHERERES - =
DEREERNRRE -R_T-_—F+_-4
=t—R AEETEEhBHERS -

No. of major

suppliers
Geographical HE FTEHEREE
Mainland China and Hong Kong R AL & B 9
Overseas NSEIN -
Total st 9
Product Responsibility B6. EmE

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in
terms of its products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to
ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to product health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. The
Group requires its employees to comply with applicable
governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

During the Year, the Group do not have any recalled products
and do not receive any compliant from its customers in relation
to either its quality of service or products. The Group has had no
non-compliance cases regarding violations of relevant laws and
regulations on product responsibility and data privacy.

EREFRERMOERMREEAEENE
ZEE - AEERIHERASEEERER
22 EE  BERARLBESmETAEE
ISP RDERR DA RTER - A%
EREREBETERNBRNREELE A
A~ sFRIRARB o

AEERFRLEEWEMER - TMEKEE
RBREREZNERTLESF - AEET
BENEWRERETREBERILOERERE
e
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B7.

B8.

H
ERERWE

Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited. The
Group’s anticorruption policies set out standards of conduct to
which all employees are required to adhere in order to promote
the integrity environment in the workplace.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest, unless
with the Group’s approval, Directors and employees are
prohibited from accepting any valuable items from co-workers,
customers, suppliers or other stakeholders. Unless with approval
the Board, senior management members are also prohibited
from engaging in any activities that involve a potential conflict of
interest with the Group or may do harm to the Group’s overall
interests. Breaches are subject to disciplinary actions, including
the termination of employment contracts where necessary.

Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the
Securities and Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter- Terrorist Financing, including the basic
procedures for customer identification and due diligence,
suspicious transactions report and recordkeeping. Ongoing staff
training has also been carried out to ensure each of the
employees is fully aware of these policies.

The PRC office is fully aware of the Group’s anti-corruption
policies and of the priority to avoid corruption from taking root in
its operation. Its management understands layered audits and
clear accountability to monitor work related activities of the next
level and as well one more level below is the key to avoid
possible corruption.

In the Year, there is no legal case concerning corruption brought
against the Group or employees.

During the Year, the Group provide no training hours to its staff in
relation to anti-corruption.

Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in order
to contribute to local development from time to time.

As global responsible citizen, the Group strives to improve the
society image and social responsibility through community
investment. All employees of the Group are encouraged to
participate their own initiatives on helping and supporting the
local communities and neighbours.
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MeMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLENNIUM PACIFIC GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 139, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

58

]

HEBATHEEZRARDARRE

(REESHSZMKLZHERAA])

=R
TEEERHANEEEE10HER R T EMIERA
BRAR(TEAE)REMBAR(GEEKE])NEE Y
BBEK  BRER-ZEZ—F T A=+ —HORAMBKHRR
® BEZALFENGABREMAMZARER  GEE
BHEPRLGEALRER  URESHBHREMT - 25
TEFHBREE -

EERA  HAMBREREBBEEESTMAG (BB
MAg)BAHESVEREEA([EBHMEREAER D)
HELATbRE BE£ER-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HZ
REMERR  REBEZALFEZGRAVBRARSE
Rene  WEERRAEBSAKGHIZEERTZARE

ERE®

EEORBELEHMAGRAZEBEAEU(ERE
FHERETERTE - EERZFEN T 2EERARE
[ZHMREREAMBHRERNEME] —Fhad - REF
BEAMAG s EXSAMBRFA(TA) BB
K ERE RESEEBTABETEMEREE - EFH
5 BEMERZERERERAIRELREENERER
PRHERE -

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have

HREZSEHE

RIBES 2 EXEHE - BREZFR/ESELANGESY
BHREEETHREENSE - WEFHEE T SRR ERE
EUMBHRRLENESHENERRETRE MESTE
HFF=REREFER - EFCHEREERIOMERATH
WERREREZER - WHRBERRKE -

determined impairment and recoverability of trade receivables to be the key

audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter
BEREZRBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BARERSHEEEZPNMERE

Impairment and recoverability of trade receivables

FEY B 5% =2 BB I AT 4 B

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical judgement
and estimates in note 5, financial risk assessment in note 6(b) and its
relevant disclosures in note 23 to the financial statements.
FEMEHRENFAF EGBE - WitsZBZHB R FZE A
[t 6(b) 81 75 [ B T A I [ 7 23 B 1R EE 155 7B F 2 -

In practice, the Group would grant credit terms to its customers
ranged between 60 to 90 days (2020: 60 to 90 days). The Group
would perform periodic assessment on the impairment as well as
recoverability of trade receivables by basing on information including
credit risk characteristics of each customers, historical ageing and
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of recovering outstanding balances, on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers and forward-looking
information that may impact its customers’ abilities to repay the
outstanding trade receivables in order to estimate the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for the impairment assessment.

ERE EEEMMEEPKETE0ZEI0OR(ZTE_ZTF 605
OR)MEEH - BEEEBREBESEPNEERBRSE  BEK
BRREERS  BEZENRR  REEEHRKENERRHELRS
B EEAEPANREXIHARURAEZEETPEERER
JEUBR FRAE 1 Y RTHE 1L &K - %9 B Y BR SR AR (B B AT U B 1 3 7T
EHRHE - AMEFDRENGNAREEEE((AHREEBR] -

Due to the significance of trade receivables to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements (representing approximately 56%
of the Group’s total assets) and the impairment assessment of trade
receivables under the ECL model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates, we considered this as a
key audit matter.

HRERERY B£EGAMBHRERNEEL(L ESEEE
HEXK56%) RIEMEEEEEIE T RUSRFH A RER ES K E
REREREFE A BEEKLRTERA—HBAREZFE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
trade receivables included:

EEERERIRF TR BN A ERIZF 84 -

- Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit control, debt
collection and estimate of ECL;

—  FHAABEEES  EREFRREFEREEEENEER
I RET - EEAEL BRI

- Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models by
examining the model inputs used by management to form
such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions variables and assumptions used in each of the
economic scenarios and their probability weightings and
assessing whether there was an indication of management
bias when recognising loss allowances;

- FRREEEREEREMAEEROENEA - LT
h EXEEMEEEREANSEY  BEARBEED
REREVETEN  STABAIBARESRBERNSLBIBTRFAM
EANEMNSBEGRTEE MNBRRIARREEEZ IS

ETEERE Wt ERBERERESHFEERER

"]

— Inspecting settlements after the financial year end relating to
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2021; and

- BERMBFEAREFEAN-_Z_—F+-_A=1+—HZ
EWRRR 2 828 &

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.
- EREAVBBRERAKBEEEM -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the Company’s annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee assist the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR &

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that w
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chi Kong

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO7348

24/F., Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E_—F —ECEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt s FET FAIT
Revenue Uk % 8 82,533 119,337
Cost of sales SHE 2R (78,520) (115,253)
Gross profit ER 4,013 4,084
Other income HAbdgA 9 46 93
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SRR = (52)
Administrative expenses THX (13,609) (18,355)
Other operating losses H S & 518 (250) (750)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment MR CREER), SREEERD
losses for trade receivables (503) 2,704
Impairment losses for other receivables H A JEUR SR IE 2R E S 1B (1,431) (438)
Loss from operation EEEE (11,734) (12,714)
Finance costs B 5 & 10 (1,542) (2,360)
Impairment losses for associates BN R 2R EEE (7,963) -
Share of results of associates DI E A R A (1,978) 64
Share of results of a joint venture DME—EEEEEE (73) 58
Loss before tax BB ATSE 11 (23,290) (14,952)
Income tax credit FrigHiikse 2 53 -
Loss for the year FREE (23,237) (14,952)
Other comprehensive income: Hitp 2 EUE :
Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJgEEH S E 18K EH -
Exchange differences on translating REGINERISRVEE X =58
foreign operations 34 216
Share of other comprehensive income of SEEEE A R A2 E R
associates 766 1,440
Other comprehensive income for the year, £ HE 2 HE UKL - HIRBIE
net of tax 800 1,656
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERZHEGEAE (22,437) (13,296)
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2020

2021
—E_—F —ECEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to: DTALTEEFRESE:
— the owners of the Company . VNGIEZ 2 =N (22,593) (14,880)
— non-controlling interests — JEFEAGRE RS (644) (72)
(23,237) (14,952)
Total comprehensive loss for ATATEEFEFAZHEEBEE
the year attributable to:
— the owners of the Company i VNGIE Z=UN (21,844) (13,340)
— non-controlling interests — IR (593) 44
(22,437) (13,296)
Loss per share (cents) SREE GBL)
— Basic — &K 15 (2.19) (1.50)
— Diluted — s 15 (2.19) (1.50)
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- At 31 December 2021

RZTE=——F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E_—F —ECEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE THET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BWENMERE 17 124 527
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 18 4,285 3,224
Intangible assets EmAE 19 - -
Investments in associates REENRIZIRE 20 22,717 31,892
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELEZRE 21 - 73
27,126 35,716
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 3,214 1,560
Trade receivables FE U BR FX 23 54,330 24,301
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  E fh lE Yt 018 - FE T 7018 R i e 24 9,781 16,041
Bank and cash balances RITMIRSER 25 2,608 1,261
69,933 43,163
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade payables FERTBR X 26 35,021 912
Other payables, deposits received and Hip U BERETE MIERTER
accrued expenses 27 15,269 10,875
Convertible bonds Al E S 28 - 21,132
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 2,129 2,547
Current tax liabilities Bt A E 418 375
52,837 35,841
Net current assets REBEEZRE 17,096 7,322
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARG 44,222 43,038
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible bonds ARRES 28 18,673 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 2,213 723
20,886 723
NET ASSETS EEFHE 23,336 42,315
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S : 2021 - 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE THET FHET

Capital and reserves BARHE
Share capital R A 31 1,649 1,649
Reserves EE 33 19,112 38,677
20,761 40,326
Non-controlling interests FEFENRRE R 2,575 1,989
TOTAL EQUITY RS 23,336 42,315

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022. mEBZeRN —F— —4FiM A —+ A At RIEBRETIEE o

—_=—

Zhou Chuang Qiang Zheng Wan Zhang
A’ BHiE

Director Director

- -
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Ty e E

Fo eyerended 31 December 2021 —
BE_T-—F+-A=+—HLFE ' .

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KAREEAEE
Equity
Foreign component
currency of Non-
Share Share translation Option  convertible Accumulated Total  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve bonds losses reserve interests equity
TaRES

BE  RGEE MERERRE BRERE  EE¥S  2HER BEE  FERER aER
(note 33(c)(i)  (note 33(c)(i)) (note 33(c)fii)) (note 33(c)(iv))
(Wiz33e)  (Haase)) (Wasaem) (Wasscm)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TFi#n FEL FhL Ti#n TFiEn FhL ThL Ti#n FiET

At 1 January 2020 R-E-Z5-f-H 1427 97,342 (656) 2,049 2,650 (64,154) 37,231 1,945 40,603
Placing of new shares (net of share issue REFRN IBRRHETRR)

expenses) (note 31(a)) (K% 318) 222 13,195 - - - - 13,195 - 13,417
Recognition of share-based payments AR BEROMR = = = 1,601 = = 1,501 = 1,501
Transfer of share option reserve upon REREXNEEEE

lapse of share options i S S S (980) - 980 = = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year ENZAEELES - - 1,540 - - (14,880) (18,340) 44 (13,29)
Changes in equity for the year QRS 22 13165 1540 611 - (1390 1448 4 1712
At 31 December 2020 and WZBZBE+ZAZ+-BR

1 January 2021 —E--%-8-H 1,649 110,537 884 2,660 2,650 (78,054) 38,677 1,989 42,315
Formation of a subsidiary RI-EHEAR - - - - - - - 1,179 1,179
Repayment of convertible bonds (note 28) B 7R &% (/7 28) - - - - (2,650) 2,650 - - -
Issue of convertible bonds (note 28) BTURRER (177728) - - - - 2212 - 2212 - 2212
Recognition of share-based payments ~ BZURDBEBAMH - - - 67 - - 67 - 67
Transfer of share option reserve upon ~ REREX NS ERBERERE

lapse of share options - - - (1,337) - 1,337 - - -
Total comprehensive loss for theyear ~ £R2EAELE - - 749 - - (22,503) (21,844) (593) (22,437)
Changes in equity for the year EREREE - - 749 (1,270) (438) (18,606) (19,565) 586 (18,979)
At 31 December 2021 R=B--F+=B=1+-H 1,649 110,537 1,633 1,390 2,212 (96,660) 19,112 2,575 23,336
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2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt st FExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FRA A ES 1R (28,290) (14,952)
Adjustments for: AT & EEHAE
Interest income FEWA (3) (©)
Depreciation of property, Y% BEMREETE
plant and equipment 412 438
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 2,746 2,606
Gain on termination of a lease contract KIEHREEH 2 e (16) -
Finance costs % ER 1,542 2,360
Impairment losses/(reversal of FEURBR R 2 R E R 1R,
impairment losses) for trade receivables CREBERD) 503 (2,704)
Impairment losses for other receivables Hth fE W IR 2 ORBEE 1B 1,431 438
Impairment losses for associates bW /N b =Y 5E =] 7,963 -
Written off of trade receivables i1 85 P U BR 3R = 2,856
Allowance for inventories FERE 428 187
Share of results of associates PaN T /NCTE 1,978 (64)
Share of results of a joint venture NME—REELEES 73 (58)
Share-based payment expenses AR BT R F 67 1,591
Operating loss before working capital changes B4 ¢ #8144 518 (6,166) (7,305)
Increase in inventories FEHEM (2,009) (1,060)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FENRBR SR (35 0), R > (30,431) 41,530
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HAb g RIE - BN RER
prepayments and deposits maeRD(gEm) 5,104 (2,880)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTBRFRE A0, CRiA) 33,930 (44,756)
Increase in other payables, deposits HEAHE  BlRETE &
received and accrued expenses FERTE G N 4,160 3,897
Cash from/(used in) operations REME/(FABAS 4,588 (10,574)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE (157) (162)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) paid BEX A BREEMEH
([EmEBL) = (©8)
Interest paid BRFLE (32) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) BiRE (X)) BAFIEH 84 (176)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities KEEBG (TR REFE 4,483 (11,010)
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or the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FE T FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B A% « HE &K=& = (27)
Interest received 2 U F & 3 3
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities BEEEE (TR R4 58 3 (24)
CASH FLOWS FROM REIHEESRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BITARES 2 FT1S5RIA 20,000 =
Proceeds from non-controlling shareholders X 37 — B b1 B A 7] &5 FE32A%
from formation of a subsidiary IRERIES 2 TS HIR 1,179 -
Proceeds from placing of shares L& RHD 2 FTSUE = 13,417
Redeem of convertible bonds f& o) A R (E 5 (21,600) -
Principal elements of lease payments HENRZARE D (2,719) (2,650)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BEEE (A, ERSFE (3,140) 10,767
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRELZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #win,/ CRd) FE 1,346 (267)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNERE R 8 2 2 1 63
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—BHEBEER
1 JANUARY BEeEEY 1,261 1,465
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTZA=+—HBWEEE
31 DECEMBER BEZEY 2,608 1,261
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND HERREEEYWHF
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 25 2,608 1,261
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt company with limited
liability under the Company Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10 September
2013. The address of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office
Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is located at 4/F., Building C,
101 Kongwei Guangchang, No. 52 Gongye Nang Road, Xinhe
Community, Fuhai Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Unit 5, 4/F., Energy Plaza, No. 92 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 July 2014.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are research and development, manufacture, sale of
electronic devices and provision of application software development
services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are discussed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

—RER
ERATFEEERARARA(ERATD DR =2 —=
FNATABREREHSARIEERE (—A~—F
BEZRER  KiEeRIE]) EREHES MK LA
—REHRRBRAT - M EEM I AWindward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © ANA 7] B & ¥ b Bh i
IAREARKMBE(HE]D RINTERERSH
B E TEEEL2% 101 REESCR4E - M
REBNEELE B BB BNERDBRNE
BEBRFEERRLIESE - RARZBRHEZT
—NEE AT N\BRERRESBE RS ERA R ([
ZFT]) GEM £ ©

ARPRIRERBRAR - HNBRRNEREBED
RTE - REREEETRE RIRMHE AR ER
% o

mAERE
ZEGAEMBRRCRETEEHNLG((FEE
SEAAE)BRENEETBEREEN( EBHBER
EER ] KRB EMAERZEBYBHEE
A FEEHER((FBERER]) RB2E) REB
RREGHRAGER - ZEHEAVBRRINT AN
GEM#EZ Em#R A ([GEM LR B |) 2 i A 4 52 15
X REBRAED (56228 ) 2 RBERTE - AEHK
A E 2 ST EREIN T AT o

TEGT AN DG EIRIE TH A REER] BB
FEA RAKEEN G HEE R ERE A RE R
e BRERZEEAEEAMOERMERE R
BEGTHRNEASHERRED RN ZEEE M
B3R - BRAERBNHES -
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting for
changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of
financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the group does not have contracts that are
indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to the
IBOR reform.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ E $} & 2021
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2021. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

3. BRI REBITEBMBEHEEER ()

(b) EEMEERERNHITIREBITEE

5 75 4R 5 2

15 o

BET T TR TR

AEEYEERAERBERNAN T =—
A — B 2 SR A R TR R] R AE 1S
ZEREAEEERZ
A REEATEBVBREENREATS

f'g_

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning

on or after
RT3 B 2%

MRS HBER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination
— Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts
— cost of fulfiling a contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities
as current or non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements — Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
— Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19
Related Rent Concessions

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2
4.

E-F_FTA=+HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

a.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2
4.

E2F
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses Whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

76

(b)

()

Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not re-measure the retained interest.

An unrealised profit on transactions between the Group and its
associate is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associate. Unrealised loss is also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associate has been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement. The Group has assessed the type of each of its
joint arrangements and determined them to all be joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Joint arrangements (continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill, which is
included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in a
loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that joint venture (including goodwill) and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (co
(c) Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

(C)

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

ntinued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or

liabilities.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of

that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(€

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

80

(€

U]

T ()

4.

Property, plant and equipment (continued) (e) W% - BERRE (&)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at M3 BB KR HIHT 8 R IR B DAMEH B AR
rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual value over REAERT A E A E AR EE - LERE
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal FE o EEFFRME ¢
annual rates are as follows:

Residual value Useful lives

FItAEE Al A S 5

Furniture and fixture REREE 0-10% 5 years &
Office equipment BN 0-10% 5 years &
Plant and machinery R M 2% 0-10% 10 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are FIREBE  AERAFHERITE AN REL
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each RFUARRET R PR (W@ ) ©
reporting period.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon ME  HWELRREEEREEXEEHAIEHR
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to f 1B (50 PR 5% R AR R RSB ) sk s BB 1
arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on R HEWE BMERXBZBRIEEMSE
disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference FEFRHEEEEERAEME 2= IR
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the ZIERRILERFERIBRNIER -
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
Leases H #EE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component
for all leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated
with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(@)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in
the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract (“Lease
Modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A
lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Cost of acquired application software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying software not
exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

a.

EESBOR (8)

U]

(9)

HE (8

AEEERAA (&)
EARBENHAX —REK LR BHMHE
¥ EAKERPRERERRGRLE
NOEEEE IRBHFGAEEREAE
WHEERITEEE AR DEBENES
23 MesHtEHEEAE  REAREH
AEREAER  EREEENKREERER
EAE  RWERREENREEERES
AR RZE AT o

EHERBEES L IHEANRELERE
mEREELAE( ((HEER])  BEXER
EENAEARE  AINZHEERELETE
atE - ERIBERT  HERERELETN
MENFIAERR - EREETMNMRERE
ERERAEHAE

FEEERHHEA

EAKBERHMEAR - REENHEEMGE
ErTERHEEREHEERLEHE - Wl
ERRWEEMBRMAMZERA AR K&E
HEEBAESME  ADBEARENE &
A HEDBEAKEES -

BILEE

BB EZEEN SRR AGTE -
EIZEEMAEBFRTERBRATHEE
ABRAMERFHNERTZEERLRNAEREZ
EEHNEE - YEBTRBRNETAER
BER EHRENE - AR ERFHNE
T & EE e 8 A B R 8H T A R D N B BT I
FREAERBERE—KX

B i o e A B A AR SR A AR AR B
B WEAEREEN RS EEF
IR ZAXFHREMMAETRRE
EEHE T BBRF -

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

:I:—?

== 5 =ar— Sl

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

V)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs is determined using the weighted average basis and
comprise all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. When
inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period of write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories recognised as an increment in the amount of
inventories and recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

0

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

(m)

(n)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the loans
into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price are regarded as compound instruments consisting of a
liability and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debt. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loans
and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded option for the holder to convert the
loans into equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible
bonds reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion related
to the equity component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

86

(P)

(@

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products and trading of
electronic accessories is recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to the
buyer’s specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the buyer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to the buyer as this represents the point in
time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from provision of application software services is
recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract.
Payment for provision of application software services is not due
from the customer until the relevant services are complete and
therefore a contract asset is recognised over the period in which
the services are performed representing the entity’s right to
consideration for the services performed to date.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

()

(t)

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coritiﬁﬂed)
(v) Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

@

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i)

(i)

)

(Vi)

(vil)

(vii

90

The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2
4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are not
yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where an
asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

92

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate
to the Group’s core operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(ii) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

° The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is
a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
down in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of
the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

a.
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B =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

-
(2

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have

made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart from those

involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@)

(®)

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for
stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An
asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Joint control assessment

The Group holds 51% of the voting rights of its joint venture,
Millennium Pacific Electronics Limited (“MPEL”). The directors
have determined that the Group has joint control over MPEL as
under the contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreement for all
relevant activities.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

@

®)

(©

Allowance for slow-moving inventories (continued)

During the year, allowance of inventories of approximately
HK$428,000 was charged to profit or loss (2020: HK$187,000
was charged to profit or loss).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC EIT.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Income tax of approximately HK$53,000 (2020: Nil) was credited
to profit or loss based on the estimated assessable profits during
the year.

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade and other receivables based on
the credit risk of trade and other receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows
are less than expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss
may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately HK$54,330,000 (2020:
HK$24,301,000), being net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$885,000 (2020: net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$382,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of deposits and
other receivables is approximately HK$9,781,000 (2020:
HK$16,041,000), being net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$294,000 (2020: HK$438,000).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key
@

@©

sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of investments in associates

The Group’s management determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in
associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment of the associates and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of losses of
associates” and “impairment losses of investments in associates”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investments in
associates is approximately HK$22,717,000 (2020:
HK$31,892,000), being net of impairment loss of investments in
associates of approximately HK$7,963,000 (2020: HK$ Nil).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 were approximately
HK$124,000 (2020: HK$527,000) and HK$4,285,000 (2020:
HK$3,224,000) respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(@

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in either HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group
has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency such as United
States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Set out below the sensitivity analysis the Group’s foreign
currency risk.

6. MEBERERE
AEEWER S BEEGZEMERR  SNERR - =
B - FIRERREBESRR - AEERERR
BEGHEIN SRS AR RIS REER
DPHAEBRBERANEETMEE

(@) SRR
AEERBNONEEEIEZUBTRARYE
[ARY D HE - AEEEEE TINERER
THRREETEBRRS  BERBENAEEH
DB AN B (T ([E]))HE
AEE BRI ERINER S  BERBEHIES
BN - AEERE T EELINERR
R ENA®EREZEEIMERINERER o

TREHNAEE 2 SNERBRBEEDIT o

(Decrease)/

Functional increase in
currency consolidated
strengthened/ profit/(loss)
(weakened) by after tax
REBRBE

HEEEH =R (E1R)
FE(B2E) (M4, 18

HK$’000

FHET

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE—FE-——F+-A=t+—HLEE 5%/(5%) (743)/743Ncte) fi2)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HILtFE 5%/(5%)  (544)/544Mct) (i)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
denominated in US$.

HeE T E R BN ARTAHERRITER - B
R AR R EL A R IR~ A R AR R B A FE A
RIERSMNE TR, (B5IE)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for which the
Company considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has significant concentrations of credit risk as 84%
(2020: 71%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from two
(2020: one) customers. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the credit risk exposure in relation to these
customers is not significant as these customers had sound
financial position for whom there was no recent history of default.
In addition, the Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivable are due within 60 to 90
days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivable at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEN'I: (continued)

102

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

6. HEEBEE(H)
b) (EEEER R
TEY AR (48 )

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s

TREEAREEN T _—&F+-_A=+—8H

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 EHREERRREREREREEBSEZE
December 2021: w
2021
B —F
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
FEHEEE IREAE ERRE
% HK$’000 HK$°000
% FE T FExT
Current (not past due) BNEA (A e HR) 0-3% 15,693 282
1- 30 days past due #HEI1Z=30H 0-3% 465 -
31-60 days past due #HI31 =60 H 0-3% 36,146 551
61-90 days past due #HI61290H 0-3% - -
More than 90 days past due #HEIQ0 H A £ 0-3% 2,911 52
55,215 885
2020
—EEF

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEEAE 1B R ARE A BB
% HK$’000 HK$'000
% FHT FAET
Current (not past due) BUVER (Y w58 HR ) 0-13% 6,850 -
1-30 days past due mHA1E30H 0-13% 1,360 13
31-60 days past due BHI31 EZ60H 0-13% - -
61-90 days past due #HI61 290 H 0-13% - -
More than 90 days past due #HEFQ0 H A £ 0-13% 16,473 369
24,683 382
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—&t-A=t—HILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Deposits and other receivables

The Group had deposits and other receivables amounted to
HK$9,521,000 (2020: HK$15,936,000) as at 31 December 2021,
In order to reduce the credit risk, the management of the
Company has assessed the credit quality of each debtor taking
into account its financial position and other factors. ECLs on
deposits and other receivables are assessed under general
approach and as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
management considers these receivables had no significant
increase in credit risk since its initial recognition and therefore
ECL for stage 1 assets applies, i.e. allowance equal to 12-month
ECL.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for deposits and other
receivables as at the end of the reporting period:

6.

B EREE (&)
(b) fFERKGE)
Be R E A

R-ZB-—F+-fA=+—0H  K~EENEKS
Ko E B IR FIB 59,521,000 L (—Z 2 =%
£ : 15,936,000/ 7T ) - KEESERRE - &
NA)E R BT REEBH AN SRR REAME
RIMEEEES & - Fe REMERFIENTE
HMEEBEBE—RFETE  RZE=2—FK
—ZT-ZEF+-A=1+—RH EBEERA%E
FEW R IE B 1A TR 1A 15 B RS I 48 7R 2 38
e AnEAE —BEEENTESHEEEE -
BB SN 128 BB EB1E -

TREMEEREERRERRMIZS REM
EWFIERRNEERR REREEBENE
o

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FrET

Gross carrying amount classified as NEARE—RERAENEREAE
stage 1 assets 9,815 16,374
Weighted average expected credit loss rate g F19TEE (S B EE = 3.0% 2.7%
Loss allowance BB B 294 438

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount due is closely monitored by the directors of the
Company. The directors of the Company consider that the
expected credit loss of this receivable is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

AR E (K)

6.
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EER(HE)
Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder (continued) JEYS — 2 FEPERR AR B 50 IE ()
Movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the RERERRREIERESE AT
year is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January wn—A—H 382 3,085
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment 4 AR OREEERED),/
losses recognised for the year DERIEY SEi 503 (2,704)
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% - 1
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 885 382
() Interest rate risk (c) FEE
The Group’s convertible bonds are arranged at fixed interest AEENAMBREFRSEEMNE - BAZ R
rates and therefore subject to fair value interest rate risks. FEF KRR
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank AEBFERBTIRBRITER c ZFRITE
deposits. These bank deposits bear interests at floating rates FAREFE S R iR T # e rF BRI RET S o
varied with the then prevailing market condition.
Except as stated above, the Group does not have other BRUA Rt Oh - AR SR B R S HA R I & oAt
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of BERNFTEEEREE  HARKERER
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are ERNHSBIRTEFNEHNES) -
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
(d) Liquidity risk (d REBELER

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of each reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

AEENBRASEHREENBRENRBES
TR UEREERARREFEENUMREE
HRERMNRBESHR -

TRIITAKRENSBAERSREHROHK
TERMR - MAREKT A RBRIIRERE
BReRE(BREERGRAMNEL(INETS
ME)RIFHRE B HBITHOR T ES LR
ERF)ARAIERARELHREBHRE
Ho
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PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HILEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BEBERERE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d REESER(E)
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on AEERBEERRMBERSTEFENESHE
contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BN PERATAT

Less than Between 1 Between 2

On demand 1year and2years and5 years
BRER — &L —ZRE MERLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET FET FET
At 31 December 2021 N-ZE—_—F
+=HA=+—H
Trade payables ERR = 35,021 - -
Other payables, deposits HbpE{FE -
received and accrued BWET€R
expenses FEstE A - 15,269 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 21,600 -
Lease liabilities HESE - 2,254 2,278 -
Less than Between 1 Between 2
On demand 1 year and 2 years and 5 years
REK —FUT —EMF MERF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET FHT FHIT
At 31 December 2020 RIE_TF
+=—A=+—H
Trade payables FERTER X - 912 - -
Other payables, deposits EAbFERTRIAE -
received and accrued S
expenses FEETERA - 10,875 - -
Convertible bonds Al E S - 21,600 - -
Lease liabilities HEAaE - 2,632 728 -
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December () M+-—A=+—Hz2mIANEH
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Financial assets: SEMEE -
Financial assets at amortised cost REHERAYR 2 e BEE 66,719 41,498
Financial liabilities: cRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHERAS| R 2R AE 68,963 32,919
()  Fairvalue n A~¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and RAEMBRAARMEYNAEECREERS
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of REENERERESEATEEE -

financial position approximate their respective fair values.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ 3} & 2021 105



106

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Operating segment information

The Group is engaged in a single type business of research,
development, manufacturing and trading of electronic devices.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information
Non-current assets of the Group are presented based on the
geographical location as follows:

7. HER
2SN e R RS BB RN EE 4 R
R -

e BER
AEERERE NEREEEFRENE—|IE
%o Wit - WEEINEEDEER

HEER
AKENFERBDEEREMEL N T

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Hong Kong Bk 560 3,236
PRC 2l 3,849 515
4,409 3,751

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is

FRBEEBRENE  BELIREREREEE -

BRAEEREIMEL WA FHRE A TR

presented based on the geographical location as follows: EZ27:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
PRC S 12,807 3,258
Hong Kong BB 69,726 116,079
82,533 119,337
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base included two (2020: three) customers with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years

is set out as below:

oEER (&)

BEETEEFHNEHR
REERFANESEBEHINOT - EHEEERE
(ZZ=TF: = R)RFGBBAEERZ10%HE
=1

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Customer A ZEA 47,280 21,279

Customer B Z2F5B 15,953 18,754

Customer C (note (i) BEC(K#3) - 18,419
0] These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total 0] BEZTS-Z—F+-A=+—RHLLEFE %5

turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

8. REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers by major

products or service line for the year is as follows:

BEFEBMZBRBEAREEZ B ETHEE
10% °

Wz
Py REBERIRBHSBANES A NS ALE
mF

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BBV ERELAE15REBEN
within the scope of HKFRS 15 R AN
Products transferred at a point in time: RE a2 ta e =g -
Sales of manufactured products R EMINE 12,807 3,258
Sales on trading of electronic products, BFEM RUHERRMEESHEE
accessories and raw materials 69,726 116,079
82,533 119,337
9. OTHER INCOME Hablg A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Foreign exchange gain, net HNEE Uy 25 558 = 4
Gain on modification of a lease contract ERBEE L 2 W= 16 -
Interest income FEUA 3 3
Others Hih 27 86
46 93
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10.

11.
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10. BEEA

FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HESERLS 157 162
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR EHF B 1,353 2,198
Others HAith 32 -
1,542 2,360

LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BREAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the REERBAERIENR, (G A) AT EIBERS)
following: i -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt st FExT FAET
Depreciation IATIEE 2 E
— Owned assets —BREE (@) 412 438
— Right-of-use assets — EREEE (b) 2,746 2,606
Staff costs (including directors’ BINK(BEEEHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — %i& - TEAL R 4,850 4,470
— Share-based payments — LR BEBRR 67 1,591
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIKEFIET IR
contributions 202 134
5,119 6,195
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 78,520 115,244
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net SNERSIE, (as) F 58 1 @)
Operating lease charges on premises MEZIKETHEER - 1,087
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE & 770 510
Research expenses MR = 28
Impairment losses for inventories FERERE 428 187
Impairment losses for associates PEE N E ZRERIE 7,963 -
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment & U BE SR (E 8538,
losses) for trade receivables CREE1ERE) 503 (2,704)
Impairment losses for other receivables — E b i U 3% 18 7 (B 5 38 1,431 438
Written off of trade receivables JE LT B S B = 2,856
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11.

12.

BE-T-—F1-A=t-Quiag

e year ended 31 December 2021

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 11. BRBATERE (&)

Notes: Kt -

(@) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately (@ HE-TZ-—F+-A=+—HILFE W% BE
HK$380,000 (2020: HK$419,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021 KRBT E 4R 380,000/ 7T (=T = F4F : 419,000
is included in cost of sales. BIT) * FEAHE 2K ©

(o) Depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$792,000 (2020: (b) BHE-Z-—F+-_A=1+—"BILFE  FRABEE
HK$NIl) for the year ended 31 December 2021 is included in cost of sales. WENRTR000EBIT(ZE_FF : BHT) 5T A

SHE 2R ©
INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FiSHiRa
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERR IR — BABFISH
Over-provision in prior years BEFEREEE 53 -
Current tax — PRC EIT BIHATITE — R RS
Provision for the year FREE = -
Total tax credit for the year FABIEK B AT 53 -

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax Regime, one of the Company’s Hong
Kong subsidiaries is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of
8.25% for the first HK$2 million of its estimated assessable profits and
at 16.5% on its estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other
Hong Kong subsidiaries not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax
Regime are subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Hong
Kong subsidiaries have sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off
against current year’s assessable profits.

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries were 25%
(2020: 25%) during the year.

No provision for PRC EIT is required since the PRC subsidiaries has no
assessable profit for the year.
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RIZABE M ERBUEMN O E2 B BB TZ8.25%
REMFEN SRR G ERTENBB2 A 88
TR A D IR 16.5% MEHMBFRFEH - BE-Z
TF+Z A=+ RIEFE - EMAFEmARSIF
B BIENEENE R RREER16.5% HEHMNEEF
/i

HRBEBHELA R AT RNHEBEEEEEE A
FERERTRET - MOBERBEBFEREL BE -
RER  AEBENPENBRRERANKREA25%
(ZEZTF 1 25%) °

RER - B ENE A RY EERTUER - RBA
FhAp B EPTISTRIEH M -
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F_or the year ended 31 December 202
HE-Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12. FrE%iKeE (]
The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the product of AEBATSHIK R ERHABERABBHEHEN
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of the HERIE ¢
Group is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-——5 ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before tax KRB AT ET 18 (23,290) (14,952)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% BB 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%) ZETF 1 16.5%) AT ERFIE (3,843) (2,467)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BAERBMANTEZE (6) (739)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TAB A RS E 2,777 1,398
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTEEBBNRBEE 1,520 2,536
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BB RERTIBEEN

not previously recognised Dk = (70)
Over-provision in prior years BAFERERE 53 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEBARTRMENTE (448) (658)
Income tax credit for the year FAMEHIKR 53 -

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEZM<
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s services BN EMNREERARISERBRREBE
as a director, whether of the Company, or its subsidiaries BSERERBZALZBE0T -
undertaking were as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-—F+-A=1+—HLEE
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
B REF
BA 2 HEREM ST &It st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FERT
Executive directors HITES
Wang Li FE - 240 - 240
Wu Yong Fu (j) RKE () - 240 - 240
Zhou Chuang Qiang B - 240 - 240
Non-executive directors FHITES
Chong Yu Keung (i) THEE () 112 - - 112
Independent non-executive B FHITEE
directors
Huang Jian (iij) =R (iii) 920 - - 90
Zheng Wan Zhang BTE 180 - - 180
Man Wai Lun (iv) ST B (v) 52 - - 52
Wong Tik Tung SRR 180 - - 180
614 720 - 1,334
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ecember 2021

HE—F-——F+=A=t—BIFE
13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(@

13. EEKEESME (F)

(@) E=ME(H)

BHE_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—HIFE

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
BIRER
BH A R FTEIHR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T FHET FHT
Executive directors HiTESR
Wang Li FE = 240 - 240
Wu Yong Fu (j) RoKE () - 360 - 360
Zhou Chuang Qiang JE A& - 240 - 240
Non-executive directors EHITEE
Chong Yu Keung (i) & () 180 - - 180
Independent non-executive BIFEHITES
directors
Huang Jian (i) = {R2 (i) 180 - - 180
Zheng Wan Zhang BTE 180 - - 180
Wong Tik Tung T TR 180 - - 180
720 840 - 1,560
Notes: B -

(i) Resigned on 31 August 2021

(if) Resigned on 16 August 2021

(iii) Resigned on 30 June 2021

(iv) Appointed on 26 July 2021

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(C)

112

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 included one (2014: Nil) director who
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments of the four (2020: five) individuals are set out below

-

13. EEREEME (B

(b) EEBEFMAL
BE-_Z-_—F+_A=1+—ALEE A&
BHEZSSFMALTEE—R(ZT—HF :
E)EE HMe RV EXFMEZ5HN ST
FemME(ZE-ZE  HR) ATHEED R

respectively: YT -

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries and allowances HEAE & KEM 1,236 879
Share-based payments LARR1D A E R 3K 17 986
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIET B3R 45 43
1,298 1,908

The emoluments fell within the following band: MEeBR T5&EE :

Number of individuals
AB

2021 2020
—B-—F —E_TF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 4 5

There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any of the
directors and the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors or
the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors. The
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during the
year have been set out in the analysis presented above.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transaction, arrangement and contract in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year of at any time during the year.

BE-T-—FR=-ZT=-_TF+=-A=+—H
IEFE  TERAEAEERAETRS AL
S sk TR BB TEAT -

HE_Z - —4FR-Z-_TF+-A=1+—8
IHFE - AEERERTAESRSERFHA
TR EAMEERMBRMEREEER
B Ve RBERLTEE

(c) SREBEAEHNHE
SEEBASERTES -NFR ENRE
NTFEREBAEZHSEHN DR2IND
irep e

@ EFRRS ZPAANPEENEX
s
EUNSE S 3 L SN
ST B R RS RE 2
FARS  RURANT  EBESEALE
AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HILEE

14.

15.

16.

DIVIDEND

No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the year
(2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE
(@) Basic loss per share

14.

15.

RE
AABRFARERNREREMBE (ZF_FF ¢
&) -

BREE
(@ BREFER

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Loss B
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic BRFTEERERRES
and diluted loss per share EiEmERE (22,593) (14,880)
Number of shares RHEHE
Issued ordinary shares at REVE TN L BR
the beginning of year 1,030,738,970 891,874,970
Effect of issue of shares (note 31(d)) B &R E (F1E31(d) = 97,128,918
Weighted average number of ARGt EEREREIRN
ordinary shares for the purpose of L AR N T
calculating basic loss per share 1,030,738,970 989,003,888

(b) Diluted loss per share
The effects of the Company’s potential ordinary shares in respect
of the outstanding share options and convertible bonds are anti-
dilutive for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2020:
HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension
scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined contribution
plan available at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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16.

(b) BREEEE
REE-E-—FR-_ZT_ZTF+-_A=+—
HIEFE - AR )8 AR TT 150 O B AR e J2 AT Rk
BEHZBEEBR Y EARESYE

BAEREE

AEBRBRERIMEAESHBEIRBTEMAS
Bt BEERBIEAEDFE((REEFE]) - &
SEUBRESHBZHRRHFERTENS%THE
HEELREEARSEER/1,500BT(ZE_2F :
1,600 70) RFE AR TR & 7T &I R 2 2l B BN E

o

\

AER B R R B AR S B I A RO 18 B 203t 77 IR
BIERPR REARDE B - ZEME R RAR T RENK
SRBIRREEEANHERTENETAN LM - A
RBRABENRRES - 77T B AR A EZENE
RAFBERE RARFERNEBORRENARE - %F
B AR RIS 5 B M ME—REREMNFTEIR
THERIER -

RZEZ—FR-_F_FTF+-_A=1+—HTETEH
WA E 2 B8 WA A -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BEKRRE

Furniture Office Plant and
and fixture equipment machinery Total
BRREE WARE BERBES st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
Cost RRA
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZEF—A—H 10 1,766 1,487 3,263
Additions NE - 27 - 27
Exchange realignment [E A% 1 6 92 99
At 31 December 2020 and 75@_2_ TF+-_A=+—H8K
1 January 2021 —E-—F—Af—H 11 1,799 1,579 3,389
Disposals HE - (48) = (48)
Exchange realignment BERAE - 3 49 52
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H 11 1,754 1,628 3,393
Accumulated depreciation and Rt IERREEE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2020 RZZT=ZTF—A—H 3 1,711 643 2,357
Charge for the year FRAL 2 17 419 438
Exchange realignment Rk 1 3 63 67
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZTF+A=+—AHK
1 January 2021 —E-_—F—AF—H 6 1,731 1,125 2,862
Charge for the year FRBAX 2 30 380 412
Disposals HE - (48) = (48)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 2 41 43
At 31 December 2021 n= —f&+=-A=+—H 8 1,715 1,546 3,269
Carrying amount B HAE
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—F+=-H=+—H 3 39 82 124
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_TF+-A=+—H 5 68 454 527
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HILEE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FHEEE
Leased Leased
properties equipments Total
HEWE HERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_ZTF—H—H 779 - 779
Additions NE 5,051 - 5,051
Depreciation E (2,606) - (2,606)
At 31 December 2020 and N_E_TF+_A=1+—"HK
1 January 2021 —E-_—F—AF—H 3,224 - 3,224
Additions wE 2,571 1,948 4,519
Written off due to early termination #4312 24 1 FEUR 2R 18 (713) - (713)
Depreciation e (2,405) (341) (2,746)
Exchange realignment EHAE 1 - 1
At 31 December 2021 R-B-——F+=-A=+—H 2,678 1,607 4,285

As at the end of the reporting period, the lease liabilities recognised
related to the above right-of-use assets are as follows:

RIS - BRE FERREE RN REaE
M -

Leased Leased
properties equipments Total
HEWE HERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H 2,719 1,623 4,342
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+-_A=+—H 3,270 - 3,270

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

BRHEBARENEEEETMERERI  BEHR
eI AR - HEEETSHAEEEER -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FRAREEZITERAX 2,746 2,606
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEREZRERX

(included in finance cost) (GTABKER) 157 162

The Group leases office, staff quarters and factory for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 to 3 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.
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19.

20.

116

19. MEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
HK$’000
FHIT
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—HF—H 723
Written off 6! (723)
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and R-EB-_EF+=-A=+—H"
31 December 2021 —E—H—-A-HRK
—E2-—-%+-A=t+-H =
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses B BEERERSE
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_ZTF—H—H 723
Written off i (723)

At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and
31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Intangible assets represent software applications acquired from
independent third parties. Such intangible assets have definite useful
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

R-_ZB-_ZF+=-A=+—8"

—2--%-F—-BRK
—E--f+ZA=+—H

REE
—E-_—-F+=-A=+-—-8

—E-TF+=-A=+—H

BEEEABYE=7THENNMHEAREX - BH
BVEAERRFHERIZEREENSFRMIKE -

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES REENTNKRE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Unlisted investments: FEHRE : FET FET
Share of net assets PMEBEFE 22,717 23,929
Goodwill EES 7,963 7,963
30,680 31,892
Less: impairment losses A OREEE (7,963) -
22,717 31,892
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year en_ded 31 December 2021
E-T-_—F+-A=t+—HLFE

FT_=_

20.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Investments in associates represents investments in unlisted equity

REE R RNRE (H])
B A AR LT RABSORE A%
B == —F+= A=t —AZBEAAREHS]

20.

securities, details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2021 are

as follows: N
Place of
incorporation/ Registered/ Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
£8 HMRY RS M HERE BERESEASL TEXBRKE W
Direct Indirect
HiE 3
TN B R 5B The PRC, RMB100,000,000/ 25% — Leasing of new energy cars,
RIEHR QA 30 November 2015 RMB10,000,000 (2020: 25%) sale of cars and accessories
("R etc., the PRC
MM B EER T E HE AR 100,000,000 7T, 25% - HEHRRAE  HERE
BRI E R AR —ZT-hfF AR®10,000,000 (ZFZTF: RS - FE
(THUMHTE ) +—A=+A 25%)
Celestial Rainbow BVI, USD50,000/ 46% - Manufacturing and trading of
Limited (“Celestial”) 9 June 2017 Usb100 (2020: 46%) electronic products,
the PRC
Celestial Rainbow EBERRES 50,000% 7T,/ 46% - BEREESFER T
Limited ([ Celestial ) —Z—+FXANAE 100ER (ZT=Z5F:
46%)

The following table shows information of the associates that are material
to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the financial statements of the

TRETHAKREBEANBEARNER - ZFH
ERARAEDENESMEREAR - FT2HROY
BEMBEDREBREQFNMERERRER

associates.
Name Z18 FTE Celestial
Principal place of business/Country FEEEME MR PRC/PRC PRC/BVI
of incorporation
RE HE
REEBARES
% of ownership interests/voting rights REBRBENMAEER 25%/25% 46%/46%

held by the Group

REEANL
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

STOITY

20. RBELQTWRE (F)

TR Celestial
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—f C—TTF B "IT-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FE T FET
At 31 December: W+=—A=+—8":
Non-current assets EREEE 8,393 8,421 1,837 2,623
Current assets REEE 8,564 7,030 79,211 72,181
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (186) (180) =
Current liabilities mEAE (18,895) (16,614) (31,664) (22,783)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) BEFE (2,124) (1,343) 49,384 52,021
Group’s share of net assets AEBHIREEFE - - 22,717 23,929
Goodwill EES - - 7,963 7,963
- - 30,680 31,892
Less: impairment losses B REEE = - (7,963) -
- - 22,717 31,892
Year ended 31 December: BE+=-A=+—HLEE:
Revenue Wezs 417 753 7,235 107,409
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),EF (728) (7,334) (4,302) 3,415
Other comprehensive income Hip2mWA - - 1,665 3,130
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive & (E518) %5 &
income for the year ZHERALE (728) (7,334) (2,637) 6,545

The Group has not recognised loss for the year amounting to
approximately HK$182,000 (2020: HK$336,000) for 4t 1 4T 2. The
accumulated losses not recognised were approximately HK$518,000

(2020: HK$336,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the Group’s RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8  XEERFEH
associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$170,000 (2020: HK$322,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administrative of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

PE SN PRPIARIR ©

AN 5 BN AR 30 4B BLUN T B R SRS R 40 182,000 78
TL(ZZ T4 : 336,000/87T) - RHERZTEELD
/518,000 87T (ZE ZF 4 : 336,000/87T) °

bl A
HP%

NEIAARBEHERRITRIR® &84/ 170,000 7
TT(ZEZFF £ 322,000870) - ARKEH i AINE
AR REAREMEINEE HEH REE - SERN
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21.

or the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Investment in a joint venture represents investment in unlisted equity
securities, details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2021 are
as follows:

21.
R—EEEhE
AEER=ZZT=
N

R—EEELENRE

MIRERENIE ETRARSNRE
—FTr- A=t HNAELEFE

Place of Paid up Percentage of Principal activities and
Name incorporation capital HK$ ownership interest  place of operation
£18 =E 18 B 7 1tk Bh HERAE T HEREEZEIL TEEBRRKEHME
MPEL Hong Kong, 10,000 Direct, 51%  Trading of cosmetic products,
28 June 2019 (2020: 51%) Hong Kong
[EEET BE 10,000 B 51% EHE(#m &8
—E-NEF —TFF : 51%)
NAZ+NH

The Group holds 51% of the voting rights of the joint venture. The
directors have determined that the Group has joint control over the joint
venture as under the contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreement for all relevant
activities.

Joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements

AEBENEGELEREIRERER - BT IR

EEOMmE - A
THREEE 2 Bk

SEEHABLERAREIE  —1]
VERBMBHET —BAE -

BECERAEDENGEFTBREALR - T2WME

using the equity method. The summarised financial information HBEMBENRESEEENNBRERR -
presented below is based on the financial statements of the joint
venture.
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 31 December: R+=ZA=+—-8:
Current assets MENEE 2,036 2,176
Current liabilities WEEE (2,036) (2,033)
Net assets/(liabilities) e/ (AE)FE = 143
Group’s share of net assets REBSEHEEFE = 73
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=1+—HLEE:
Revenue W5 - 2,060
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FR(BE)EFHREERALE
income for the year (142) 113
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23.

120

INVENTORIES 22. FE&
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Raw materials EM R 2,525 -
Finished goods and merchandise BURK i X% B 689 1,560
3,214 1,560

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories were stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately HK$428,000
(2020: HK$187,000) was charged to profit or loss.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

R|WEHR - ARE 2 FEIIEKAE A Z R FER

EBREEIIR -

RER FTEEMBLH42800ET(ZT_TF:

187,000 7T) B Bam kR ©

23. FEWERRR

2021 2020
—E-—F ke ke 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Trade receivables FEUR BR TR 55,215 24,683
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE R (885) (382)
54,330 24,301
The Group’s trading terms with its major customers is either on credit AEEHEEFBRENE SIERARERMALEER

or to provide the Group with irrecoverable letters of credit issued by
reputable banks, with terms within 60 to 90 days (2020: 60 to 90 days).
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the
invoice date is as follows:

HEBRIFOIRITAETHRA0EH(ZE

TF 60F 90 H) MM A YLEEAE °

AR E TS

KU AREEBERRBETTRABES - BHSHMmES

TEHIZER] o

AR BIRER A E BRI IRER DT T

2021 2020

it —ECEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

0-30 days 0% 30H 15,411 -
31-60 days 31 £ 60H 465 2,117
61-90 days 61290 H 5,657 4,733
Over 90 days Q0 HM E 32,897 17,451
54,330 24,301
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 December 2021, trade receivables of approximately
HK$38,919,000 (2020: HK$17,451,000) were past due but not
impaired. These trade receivables related to customers for whom there
was no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables, based on due date, is as follows:

23.

PEW R X (48)
BE-_ZTZ-_—4+-_A=+—8' EREZYD
38,919,000 L (=T =FF : 17,451,000/ 70) B
BERERIRE o %5 FE MR TR EE N M3 HR R A 4R R
BEAM - Z%EEWRZIZE B A 5T 6 BRE 2 AT an
T3

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

0-30 days 0% 30H 465 1,346
31-60 days 31E60H 35,595 -
Over 60 days 60 B £ 2,859 16,105
38,919 17,451

The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECL as
prescribed by HKFRS 9. The impairment methodology is set out in
notes 4(x) and 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the credit risk assessment are included in note 6(b) to the
consolidated financial statement.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that there is no
significant increase of credit risk regarding the outstanding balances of
trade receivables over due for over 60 days as at 31 December 2020
and 2021, after carefully considered (i) the payment patterns and credit
history of these customers; and (i) the amounts recovered subsequent
to the end of the reporting periods.

Lifetime ECL that has been recognised in accordance with simplified
approach set out in HKFRS 9 is as follows:

AR R B3 M 5% S5 A AR YOI R B Bl B (R R @ o

REFERBEBUHRELENEOTAEHABLT
ERMTEEE BB - BES ZHRNGRAMBERE
M 7E 4(x) &2 6(0) ©

EERBRFHEFBRN G A M IERERME6D)

KEAFZR()ZEEP AR A REERE « K
BAFEERBRESRREKE RAREERARZ
ToEFRIT—F+ZA=+—H0 BHEA
60K 2 FEUWBERCR BB 484 2 B R I 48 K g 38
hne

IRIBEE R 155 YE R 55 O 5% A 8 ) L 7 R RERR A
2HBEHERBERET

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fax FHET

At beginning of year REH] 382 3,085

Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment losses) 4 RiER R (EE 1B,

recognised for the year CR{E R ERE) 503 (2,704)

Exchange realignment bE 4, A - 1

At end of year REXR 885 382
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of

24.

122

FE e R K (4)

AR S AR B R KA AR EE A T A

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: & :
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 2,859 17,161
Us$ e 45,449 6,685
RMB AR 6,022 455
54,330 24,301
OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 24, HMEWFIE  BARERES
DEPOSITS
An analysis of the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and ANEE B E M EUGRIE - BB kiR S (BRE#E)
deposits, net of allowance, is as follows: AT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Deposits i) 4,039 13,922
Other receivables H At YR IE 5,482 2,014
Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder [ U — 44 FE 12 A% A% B8 308
(note (a)) (77 (a)) 260 -
Prepayments TE R = 105
9,781 16,041
Note (a):  The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Wiat(a) - FEMGRIBAEER - % B RERERKGEE -

12-month ECL on deposits and other receivables that has been
recognised in accordance with general approach set out in HKFRS 9 is
as follows:

RREBUBREERE OSKAE —MRIERERNIZ
& REAMENFIAN12EATEREEBENT

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT FHIT

At beginning of year RE) 438 -
Impairment losses recognised for the year RN S B R EEE 1,431 438
Written off s (1,592) -
Exchange realignment HE 34, 5 B 17 -
At end of year RER 294 438
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25. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 25. RITRBRESLEER
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of the RIREER - AEEHRIT RIS ARIZ NS
Group are denominated in the following currencies: (=
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 109 152
RMB AR 2,495 1,066
US$ ET 4 43
2,608 1,261
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s AR R0 RINEBZ R BINEE $I 5HI RAEE - &
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of B R (SRR NE AR FIARIR - AR AImBEREETE
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. HEBHRITLIBAEMER -
Exchange of RMB into other currencies is permitted through bank
authorised to conduct exchange business.
26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. FETERR

or the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEHFE

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the invoice
date is as follows:

AEERER B P ENENRROREITOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FHET

0-30 days 0Z30H 3,441 -
31-60 days 31E60H 2,404 -
61-90 days 61290 H 2,464 -
Over 90 days QB E 26,712 912
35,021 912

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

ARG BN E RN EN RO REEA TS

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: 8 :
2021 2020
—EZ—fF —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 906 -
RMB AR 11,476 4
us$ Ev 22,639 908
35,021 912
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28.

124

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

27. HtENFIR BRI EREER

2021 2020
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHT
Accruals for operations KL EETIEE 1,313 890
Accruals for staff costs FEETB TR 5,141 1,994
Amounts due to a director of a subsidiary BN —HENBRARZ —RESBHKIE

(note (a)) (Kt (@) 1,661 1,432
VAT payable FERTIEER - 2,090
Others Hih 7,154 4,469
15,269 10,875

Note (a):  The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Kiit (@) - UGB AEIRIR - 2R RARERFER -

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
2019 Convertible bonds (“2019 CB”)

The convertible bonds were issued on 5 March 2019. The bonds are
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the date of issue of the bonds and 26 February 2021. The bonds are
convertible to an aggregated of 55,555,555 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.36 per share. If the bonds are not converted, they
will be redeemed at par on 5 March 2021. Interest of 4% per annum will
be settled with the outstanding principal at the maturity date.

The convertible bonds were matured on 14 March 2021 and the
Company redeemed the convertible bonds at HK$20,000,000 together
with accrued interest.

2021 Convertible bonds (“2021 CB”)

The convertible bonds were issued on 2 July 2021. The bonds are
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time after the
period of twelve months commencing from the issue date and till the
fifth business day prior to the maturity date. The bonds are convertible
to an aggregated of 166,666,667 ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$0.12 per share.

If the bonds are not converted, they will be redeemed at par on 1 July
2023. Interest of 4% per annum will be settled with the outstanding
principal at the maturity date.

ARRES
“E-NEUEREF (2= -NLFTERE
%10
ABBREER T NAE=ARAET - EFARNE
EBRTRAME_T - —F - A= +/NB 2 EEE R
BANREBR - EHFTIRER0IBBTELAAS
55,555,555 R A A Al E ik o 41 FH R H i
HEWR-_T-—F=FAAEEMEEE - BEHILER
BEAE4% 2 FEBREBALHE -

28.

ARBREFER-Z=—F=ATMHBEH  AAF
£ 38 i 20,000,000 7 7T # [F] FE 51 71 B & 2 Al R A% (&
%—’F °

TEC-FURAREF (B —FURKRE
%10
ABMBREFR T —FLAZRAET - EHFARE
THEE+—EAAZRHAFMNERAEZZERBH
VER R AARNRLBER - EHIIRER012ET
HirkA 166,666,667 AN A A BT o

HESFAELR HER -_T-_=F+tA—HKEE
fBE - SFREREERS4% N ESNEIMMAESE -
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RE-F- &1-A=1 AL%E | -

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 28. WBRKES (&)
2021 Convertible bonds (“2021 CB”) (continued) —E-—FURREF (= —FTRRE
% 1) ()
The net proceeds received from the issue of the 2021 CB have been BT - —FARES 2 ERAMEREFRE RN
split between the liability element and an equity component, as follows: BEHD RiERDY 2 EIEHAEAT
2021CB
—EB-—F
AR E S
HK$’000
FHET
Nominal value of convertible bonds issued BEITAIRRESNEE 20,000
Equity component A D (2,212)
Liability component at date of issue RETBHZBERS 17,788
Movements of the liability component during the reporting period are as MERANBEDLHOEEHIOT -
follows:
2019CB 2021CB Total
—E-NF —E-—F
AR ES AR ES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHT FAET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-TF—H—H 18,934 - 18,934
Interest charged (note 10) WERRIFB (B e 10) 2,198 - 2,198
As at 31 December 2020 and RZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2021 r—ZE-—F—H—H 21,132 - 21,132
At issuance of the instrument REETT AR — 17,788 17,788
Redeemed BfE (21,600) - (21,600)
Interest charged (note 10) WCERE) B (HraE 10) 468 885 1,353
Liability component at RZZE=—_—F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2021 zBaEsy - 18,673 18,673
The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an effective FRUIMEF SR EEHFEITR24 8 A BE AR
interest rate from 10.20% to 11.58% (2020: 11.58%) to the liability BEDDZEEFIE10.20%E11.58%(ZF_ZTF :
component for the 24 months period since the bonds were issued. 11.58%) 51 & -
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30.

126

LEASE LIABILITIES

Minimum lease payments

29.

HERE

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BIKAERE BEAEREZEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—f C—T-TF B "IT-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FE T FET
With one year —FR 2,254 2,632 2,129 2,547
More than one year, but not —FE P ETBIBRFE
exceeding two years 2,278 728 2,213 723
4,532 3,360 4,342 3,270
Less: Future finance charges W REBEE R (190) (90) N/ATER  NATER
Present value of lease obligations ~ HESEZIRE 4,342 3,270 4,342 3,270
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : I 1218 A A E| HA%E 2
within 12 months (shown FERREB AR
under current liabilities) TFR) (2,129) (2,547)
Amount due for settlement P12 A% EEE 2 308
after 12 months 2,213 723

The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 4%
(2020: 4%).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$33,448,000 (2020: HK$24,682,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses HK$10,392,000 (2020: HK$7,011,000) that will expire
in 5 years from 2022 to 2026. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deferred taxation has not been
provided in the financial statements in respect of temporary difference
attributable to profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
amounted to approximately HK$9,962,000 (2020: HK$10,253,000)
since 1 January 2008 as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30.

HEaBEERZMETHESERMERI% (=T
TEF 4%) o

ELER IR

P& R - NEBE R AR 33,448,000 7T (=
T T £ 24,682,000/ 7T ) OB IH E 18 A EH S R
RERBET - RZRSERTEERECHIELE
ThE AR 3R I AR &0 A B TR o 5FAKRHER AR
TEE1EH74910,392,000 8 7T (ZE=F 4 : 7,011,000
BILEE  BR - E- 5 T - AERFHE
o EAth B TE &5 18 F] gE AR PR AR 4SS o

REBEPELEMETE  hERBEATR_FTN
F—A— BARREAE N SRR SEURTRIN -

RIZZ—FRZZFZTF+-A=+—8 ' st %E
EHEMBARE ST N\F— A —HRERROEH
FEARE I ZRE A 59,962,000 (=T =T 4F :
10,253,000 7T ) + FBA 7§ ¥R & AU AR AR BT Y
18 - Ty S B A I s 5 R O A I [ R G
ZFA RN R AR REE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

= F  Fi-A=t-ALTE

*= < —

SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
Number of shares
RHOEE
At HK$0.0016
per share HK$’000
%1% 0.001678 T FERT
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E-TF+-_A=+—H"
T —F—-A—-HEK
—E-_—F+-A=+—H 6,250,000,000 10,000
Issued 21T
At 1 January 2020 R-_BE-_ZTF—H—AH 891,874,970 1,427
Placing of new shares (note (a)) BEMBAD (7 (a) 138,864,000 222
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and R=-ZE-ZHF+=-A=+-—H -
31 December 2021 —E-—-f—F—HEK
—E-—-H+=-A=+—H 1,030,738,970 1,649
Note: HiaE -

(@) On 20 April 2020, an aggregate of 138,864,000 new shares were issued
upon completion of the placing pursuant to the placing agreement entered
into by the Company and the placing agent, Aristo Securities Limited, on
27 March 2020, at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share. The
premium on the issue of shares, amount to approximately HK$13.2 million,
net of shares issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises all
components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing. As of 31 December 2021, approximately 69%
(2020: 69%) of the shares were in public hands.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ EE #{ 4 2021

TENA-+H  REAABRERLRERIEH
BRARN-ZF_FF=ZA-+LRAMTL
EEHHTREE % - #1745 138,864,000 %7 A%
7 BEEEREREERMN 01087 - HITRNM 24
ELEMN1B2BEB T EMBR BN EITR) BT
ARRBZ BIEER -

AEEEREAN B RRREASHFECLENEN
K& BB EEREA BT ARRFRFRER -
AEEEARRBRERFIERNAEEKTE -

AEBBEBEBEAKA R ETEEAEBNRRL
BEESEAERE AEERSEBINRE - BITH
B R DB REITHEY BOBEEESSEE
BENMRDEBSH N FEHEZREERERE - HEZ
BB EFE+_A=+—HILEE  EXK
TEMEE BERTREHEZS -

ARE B MR BRI P T 2 E—SNEBRE I B
RENRE  AEBRARFTED26% KM HRZFK
B AEESRRERMNBFPELBELIIRIFLR
FREZEARMERRS  ZREBRAEES L
T HBNRSEE T B - HE_T - —F

T-AZ+—B FAEEBN6%(ZE-TF:
69%) 17 i A BAFHA -
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32.

128

AR T Z MR R
COMPANY
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHAT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 3 11
Right-of-use assets FRREE 557 3,224
Investment in a subsidiary RETB AR ZIRE = -
560 3,235
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAR R K E A U GRIA 728 978
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSPH S A RIZRIA 26,344 39,717
Bank and cash balances RITRBA S 97 151
27,169 40,846
Current liabilities rBAaE
Other payables and accrued expenses E b e I R BT E A 5,883 7,400
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHI A RIZRIA = 8,024
Convertible bonds AR ES = 21,132
Lease liabilities HEAaE 577 2,547
6,460 39,1038
Net current assets REEEFE 20,709 1,743
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 21,269 4,978
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible bonds AT AR E S 18,673 -
Lease liabilities HEAaRE = 723
18,673 723
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,596 4,255
Capital and reserves BRAER#E
Share capital N 1,649 1,649
Reserves EE 947 2,606
TOTAL EQUITY gyt 2,596 4,255
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April HEFER _T_FNAZ-ThLBIEREET
2022. o
Director Director
EF E
Zhou Chuang Qiang Zheng Wan Zhang
ARl WIS
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HE_T—

or the year ended 31 December 2021
—F+=A=t+—RALFE

33. RESERVES

(@

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

33. f#fE
(a)

rEM
AEEMFERETNESEGARERE M
EEWER RAFAEREHRAZT o

Company (b) Z&AF
Equity
component of
Share Option convertible
premium reserve bonds  Accumulated
(note 33(c)j))  (note 33(c)ii))  (note 33(c)(iv)) losses Total
ARRESZ
R EE BRERE BEHS ES ] act
(KfaE33(c)))  (HaF33c)i))  (AaE33(c)iv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR THT TR
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-A—-8H 97,342 2,049 2,650 (102,564) (529)
Placing of new shares BE R R
(net of share issue expenses) (MBI B 1TRI ) 13,195 - - - 13,195
Recognition of share-based AR AERER R
payments - 1,691 - - 1,591
Transfer of share option reserve 15T $48% AR 5 3¢
upon cancellation of BRERRE
share options - (980) - 980 -
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZEEBE
loss for the year HEkH] - - - (11,657) (11,657)
At 31 December 2020 and R-Z-ZF
1 January 2021 +ZA=t-B%
“T--%—-f—H 110,537 2,660 2,650 (113,241) 2,606
Repayment of convertible bonds{ & 7T £ i & % - - (2,650) 2,650 -
Issue of convertible bonds RITUBRRES - - 2,212 - 2,212
Recogpnition of share-based ~ EZURHAERMN
payments [SE - 67 - - 67
Transfer of share option reserve K8 IR EEUK S SR B R E
upon lapse of share options  f#{& - (1,337) - 1,337 -
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZEFEAE
loss for the year - - - (3,938) (3,938)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--&
+-B=+-H 110,537 1,390 2,212 (113,192) 947
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33. RESERVES (continued)
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()

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance
costs of shares.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(d)(iii) to the financial statements.

Option reserve

Option reserve represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(s) to the financial
statements.

Equity component of convertible bonds
The equity component of convertible bonds represents the
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds
in note 4(n) to the financial statements.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 20 June 2014, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt two share
option schemes namely, Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and Share Option Scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) to recognise and motivate the contributions that eligible
participants have made or may make to the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period commencing from
20 June 2014 to the date immediately prior to the Listing of the
Company (i.e. 17 July 2014), after which no further option to be
granted, but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 20 June 2014
will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective date to 19
June 2024.

Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 27 June 2014.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / £ E $} & 2021
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 34, LRABEBRGHLR(E)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors passed on 4 June
2019, it was resolved to grant an aggregate of 68,720,000 share
options with exercise price of HK$0.2412 per share (2019 Share
Options”) entitling the directors and employees to subscribe for
68,720,000 shares of the Company. Detail of the Company’s share
options are set out below:

DREREEBRESTE (&)
BIEEZER_T—NFNANBRBARER &
RIZTTEE TR 0.2412 % ST % i & $£68,720,000 3
i 72 = (8 B # 5 3288 K 2 7]68,720,000 A& AR 5
MERE(=Z—AFBRE]) - AN RERE
ZEBEENTX

No. of share
options
expired/
Date of grant of lapsed/
the options during On cancelled On Exercise
Name of the reporting 1 January during 31 December  Vesting Exercise price per
grantee period 2021 the year 2021  period period share option
FRBE/
ok M RZB=-% K¥/HE R-B--% SRBRE
ARAREA BB —-A-B ZBREHE +-A=+-B HEH TR R
HK$
BT
Wu Yong Fu 4 June 2019 (A) 6,756,000 (6,756,000) - NA 4 June 2019 to 0.2412
3 June 2029
RXE “T-NFAANAEA TER “T-NFAANAE
“ZZNFRAZA
Chong Yu Keung 4 June 2019 (A) 6,756,000 (6,756,000) - NA 4 June 2019 to 0.2412
3 June 2029
[reEd ZT-NERARBEA il ZT-NERARAZE
ZTZNFRAZA
13,512,000 (13,512,000 -
Employees 4 June 2019 (B) 12,596,000 - 12,596,000 4 June 201910 4 June 2020 to 0.2412
3 June 2020 3 June 2029
EE ZE-NEAAEAPE) “T-NERAMABE —Z-ZESAMNAE
Z-E-TF “RNAFRAZH
~AZ=A
Employees 4 June 2019 (C) 12,596,000 - 12,596,000 4 June 201910 4 June 2021 to 0.2412
3 June 2021 3 June 2029
EE ZE-NEFARANAQ) “E-NERAMABE —ZE-—FXAMAZE
Z-F--F “RCNAFRAZH
~AZ=R
25,192,000 - 25,192,000
Total 38,704,000 (13,512,000) 25,192,000
st
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ear ended 31 December 2021
——F+ZA=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 34, URHHERR(F)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) DREREEBRESTE (&)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITERERRAES B R AR INE T I91T(E B 2 ZEhan
related weighted average exercise price as follows: I~ ¢
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of exercise of exercise
options price options price
¥ Ik
BRERE TEEE  BREZE 1TEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

Outstanding at the beginning of REARITE

the year 38,704,000 0.2412 61,964,000 0.2412
Expired/lapsed/cancelled RERBE, R T

during the year (13,512,000) 0.2412 (23,260,000) 0.2412
Outstanding at the end of the year  AERKITHE 25,192,000 0.2412 38,704,000 0.2412
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RAFRAI{1T{E 25,192,000 0.2412 26,108,000 0.2412
As at 31 December 2021, options to subscribe for a total of 25,192,000 RIZFZ—F+ZA=+—08  BREERETSTR
(2020: 38,704,000) option shares were still outstanding under the Share 8 4 ££25,192,000% ( == — = 4 : 38,704,0000% )
Option Scheme which represents approximately 2.44% (2020: 3.75%) B AR AR AR (9 O RE AR D AR BT TME - BER AR AR %
of the issued ordinary shares of the Company. TERERIL244% (ZFEZFF : 3.75%) °
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34.

134

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

The above options comprising at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.5 years and the exercise price is
HK$0.2412. The estimated fair values of 2019 Share Options are

34. DR HBERMIR ()
AR 45 B8 A A A (40
FREEN LREREN T HRBREOBARTS
FRITEBR02412BT - —F— NEBRIEZ1h
SATERAAXNEREE - A TERZER

determined using the Binomial Model. The estimated fair values and ZEZBABBOT
significant inputs into the models were as follows:
2019 Share Options
TE-hEFHBRE
4 June 2019 4 June 2019 4 June 2019
(A) (B) (€)
—E-hF —E-hEF —E-hEF
ANAMH (A) ~AMEA (B) AAMA(C)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAET
Option price model HAEEEERX Binomial ZE=, Binomial &=, Binomial 18
Estimated fair value at the EFE B AR AT E HK$1,270,0003# 7t HK$1,334,0007%7C HK$1,340,0007% 7T
measurement date
No. of options granted R ESE 20,268,000 24,226,000 24,226,000
Estimated fair value of each option TBHERENETATE HK$0.063 % 7T HK$0.055 % 7T HK$0.055 87T
Weighted average share price at RETE AR NEFHRE HKS$0.13 7T HK$0.133# 7T HK$0.137& 7T
the measurement date

Weighted average exercise price IEFITEE HK$0.2412% 7T HK$0.241247c  HKS$0.2412 7 7T
Exercise multiple TEEE 1.60 2.47 2.47
Expected volatility TEHR IR 133.91% 133.91% 133.91%
Expected life TERTF HA 10 years 10 years 10 years
Risk free rate 3 b A K 1.44% 1.44% 1.44%
Expected dividend yield TEERRR B as K NilZ NilZ Nil =

The expected volatility was determined by using the average of the
annualised standard deviation of daily return of share price of three
comparable companies’ historical volatility quoted by Bloomberg.

Eidea Professional Services Company Limited is an independent firm of
professional valuer appointed by the Company to carry out the fair value

of 2019 Share Options.

The expenses of share-based payment recognised in profit or loss

& HR )R fi8 7558 A Bloomberg PR =i AT & LL &L 7]
ME SRR B B S R P FREZETE o

BEZERBERARAARRAZREUFHE=—F—N
FREENDTENBLERMGERRF -

HEHARBREERZ AR D SERSNFRX L

during the reporting period are as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
2019 Share Options —E - NFERRE 67 1,591
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—&t-A=t—HILEE

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

35. RMBARIZRE
MBARTR B —F+_A=+—HZHE0T:

Registered and

Percentage of

Principal activities and

Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
g SEMBUSL AR i B A RARRE REREERBAL TEXBRSE M
Direct Indirect
HiE k3
Millennium Pacific International British Virgin Islands 1,000 ordinary 100% - Investment holding,
Group Limited 11 September 2013 shares of US$1 each Hong Kong
Millennium Pacific International HBHAHS 1,000 REREE1ET BEER - B8
Group Limited ZE-=ZFAAT-A  wEAR
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
10 October 2014
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited 5 10,0007 70 REER - &%
—E-mEtA+A
Millennium Pacific Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic devices,
10 October 2014 Hong Kong
Millennium Pacific Solutions Limited 5 10,0007 70 BEFREES B8
—T-mEFTA+HA
Millennium Pacific Internet Finance Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Services Company Limited 21 April 2015
ERATFEMELRRBERAT B4 10,00077% BERR - B
ZE-AFMEAZt+—A
BRI CRII) B ERHR AR PRC Registered: RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding, PRC
BR AT (note 1) 21 May 2015 Paid up: RMB10,000,000
RO ORI BB ER FiE B AR 20,000,000 7T REER -
BRRF (M) “E-RFAAZF-A HIR - AR%10,000,0007T
FIBESEERAR" PRC, Registered: RMB5,000,000 - 90%  Trading of electronic devices,
10 July 2017 Paid up: RMB600,000 PRC
RYIBEERERAF" B B AR 5,000,000 7T BTHREES  hE
—T—t+F+A+H #R - AR¥600,0007T
BRAFGRY) BEREEAERAR PRC, Registered: RMB300,000 - 100%  Investment holding, PRC
4 August 2017 Paid up: RMB206,000
BAAR (R BERBEAERRR  HE B AR 300,0007T REER -
—T—+FN\AEA #R - AR¥206,0007T
BRAFCGRY)EFRIEARAR PRC, Registered: RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing of electronic
28 September 2017 Paid up: RMB6,000 devices, PRC
BAAR (RIDEFRBARRR HE B : AR ¥ 5,000,000 7T BLEEFRE - PH
—T-+FNAZFTNAR HE: AR¥6,0007T
BRNE ORI KBIEBEERAR* PRC, Registered: RMB300,000 - 100%  Inactive, PRC
28 September 2017 Paid up: RMB6,000
BAAR (R REEBEERAR HE - AR#300,0007T TmER - hE
—T-+FNAZFTNAR HE: AR¥6,0007T
EE (BN BERBRAR PRC, Registered: RMB1,000,000 - 80%  Development and sales of
(FEEREM 11 August 2017 Paid-up: RMB250,000 software applications, PRC
FEE(BM) BEREERAE FiE B - AR¥ 1,000,000 7T R EAREANHEER
(TEEEEM D ZE—tFNAT—H  #R: AR¥250,0007T HE  HE
ERER(EHE)BRAR PRC, Registered: RMB2,000,000 - 51%  Manufacturing of electronic
(FEBE:H (EA) D (hote 2) 3 June 2021 Paid-up: RMB764,000 products, PRC
ERER(BER)ARAR B =t - AR 2,000,000 7T BfEREE  FH
(MEBER(BA) D) (Ht2) —FT-—%XA=A #R - AR¥764,0007T
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note 1: B 75 ORYI) B R B E R B R A 7 is a wholly-foreign owned

enterprises established in the PRC.

Note2: JE B & (B 7 ) A R 2 & is a partly-foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC.

L PRC companies with limited liability

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised

-

35. RHBLRZKRE (K)

Kzl BRI CRI

)RR EIER AR A B A —HRF

BRSSP B A 5

M2 . EBER(ER) BRI A—HNRTBKZHES
INERFHLRE -
! TRARRERAR

TR GRS S B EANI RS (%
IR ) B AR AR - AR EBRRAR

financial information represents amounts before inter-company R HATR 258 -
eliminations.
ZEEEM ELER(EAR)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F T -TF B T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Name B FHTT FHT FHT FAT
Principal place of business/country 3= & #1425 Ak 7 BIZ PRC/PRC PRC/PRC PRC/PRC N/A
of establishment HE B, HE, A
% of ownership interests/voting TR AN T E N/A
rights held by NCI R AN RERE 20% 20% 49% i
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets IERBEE 5 11 3,729 -
Current assets REEE 11,122 10,784 16,804 -
Current liabilities mEAE (568) (536) (17,121) -
Non-current liabilities BB E - - (2,213) -
Net assets BEFE 10,559 10,259 1,199 -
Accumulated NCI BETIEIERR M 2,111 2,051 588 -
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=1+—HLEE:
Revenue Wk - - 12,452
Loss 518 (18) (64) (1,205) -
Total comprehensive income 2HEWAREE 338 597 2 -
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DA EIEERER
swFl (EE) 64 106 (590) -
Net cash (used in)/from operating 4 %E &) (FTR),/Fii5
activities and increased/ BeFErkEekES
(decreased) in cash and S/ CRd)
cash equivalents (12) (29) 358 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HILEE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. GEHEMERME
CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (a) RMETBZAEBEHE
activities
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the Group’s TRFINAEEREFTHEAC BENESF
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and B AEEERIERSEE REZHELY
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BEDEARSREIRRBASRENAEE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, FEReRBRPHOERARMEEHRESREN
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as afg e
cash flows from financing activities.
1 January Lease Interest  Exchange 31 December
2021 Additions  termination  Cash flows charges realignment 2021
—E--%
“E--F +=A
-A-H hE HELL BeRE FSER ERAR Er=[
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TET FET Fix TET FHT
Convertible bonds — liabilties Al ER — BEHH 21,132 17,788 - (21,600 1,353 - 18,673
component (note 28) (fr7#28)
Lease liabiliies (note 29) RE&E (29 3,210 4,519 (729) (2,876) 157 1 4,342
24,402 22,307 (729) (24,476) 1,510 1 23,015
1 January Lease Interest ~ Exchange 31 December
2020 Additions  modification  Cash flows charges  realignment 2020
ke ek 33 TZA
—A-H NE  HEEY  HenE  FISER Ei@EZ =1+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET FAR TAT TAT FAT TAT
Convertible bonds — liabifties 2 &% — &35 18,034 - - - 2,198 SR K
component (note 28) (Hiz228)
Lease liabilties (note 29) BERB(H29) 869 5,051 - (2,812) 162 - 3,270
19,803 5,051 - 2,812 2,360 - 24,402
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37.

38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36.

CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for lease comprise

BABRSTERNE ()

(b) HENRSRHAE
BRAEFARSRERNSHEBIEATRIER

the following:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within operating cash flows KERERE 157 162
Within financing cash flows BMERERE 2,719 2,650
2,876 2,812

These amounts relate to the following: ZESEEUTER :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Lease rental paid s 2,876 2,812

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EBREE

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any capital
commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38.
Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period

(2020: Nil).

R-F_—FR_F_TFT_A=1—H *&KH
WA A AR

HREE
BZEM BRI EMEHRES - AEERREHR
WEEAKAREE(ZT_FF: F) -
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40.

41.

ear ended 31 December 2021
——F+ZA=+—HLFE

LITIGATION

On 16 November 2020, the Company received a judgement issued by
the People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, pursuant to
which, among others, the Company shall repay to the plaintiff the
outstanding rental of approximately RMBO0.63 million plus overdue
interests and other costs. The Company, appealed the above
judgement to the Intermediate Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
in December 2020.

The Company received a final judgement dated 3 November 2021
issued by the Intermediate People’s Court, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province which rejected the appeal of the Company and upheld the
original judgement issued by the People’s Court, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province. The Company had recognised provision under
other payables for the claim during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those balances of related party disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with its related parties during the year.

Key Management Compensation

Other than those disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no remuneration paid to key management
personnel of the Company during the year (2020: Nil).

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29 April 2022.
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ARREIERE RN THRAREREHOBRA
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Year ended/As at 31 December
HE+t-A=t+-ALFEE/R+-A=+-A

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZB--§ CZT-Rf  Z-NF ZT-\F C"T+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THEL THL THT FET
OPERATING RESULT REXE
Turnover EERE 82,533 119,337 301,214 77,433 112,984
Cost of sales HEZRA (78,520) (115,259) (289,904) (67,258) (107,419)
Gross profit E7 4,013 4,084 11,310 10,175 5,565
Other income HigA 46 93 2,445 3,311 2,756
Seling and distribution costs HERDHRA - (62) (254) (225) (640)
Administrative expenses TBAZ (13,609) (18,355) (25,794) (46,784) (41,634)
Other operating losses Hih g gHE (250) (750) - - -
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment loss BHRUER (RERE)/
on trade receivables REEBER (503) 2,704 (3,085) - -
Impairment losses on other receivables EtENFERESE (1,431) (438) - - -
Loss from operation EEEFR (11,734) (12,714) (15,378) (33,523) (33,252)
Finance costs HBER (1,542) (2,360) (1,790) (396) (397)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERB LB - - 12,853 - 701
Impairment losses for associates FBEARZAEESR (7,963) - - - -
Share of results of associates AMEHERRIEE (1,978) 64 4,054 (478) -
Share of results of a joint venture ME—HABLEEE (73) 58 10 - -
Loss before tax BEAEE (23,200) (14,952) (251) (34,397) (33,649)
Income tax credit/(expense) FEkiEs,/ (F) 53 - @) (733) (38)
Loss for the year FREE (23,237) (14,952) (259) (35,130) (33,687)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMRE (EE),/
for the year, net of tax: WA HIBRBE
tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEEHHEEERMNIER
Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value BATEFAZBZERA
through other comprehensive income NeREAELATESY - - (338) 125 -
ltem that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AEENHBEEBRMER ¢
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations  #E /8N £ 755 H)E 1 = 58 34 216 (776) 838 (2,198)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposals HEHE AR
of subsidiaries 3 - - (1,586) - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates B4 A RIEIG E i 2 EUWRA 766 1,440 - - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FrREMEEKS
for the year, net of tax (B18)  MBRFE 800 1,656 (2,700) 963 (2,198)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEHFEAE (22,437) (13,296) (2,953) (34,167) (35,885)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: EEER(FR),/H5
— Owners of the Company — AREHEA A (22,593) (14,880) (1,081) (36,293) (33,665)
— Non-controling interests — FERiER (644) (72) 828 1,163 (22)
(23,237) (14,952) (253) (35,130) (33,687)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EtERZE
for the year attributable to: (B8 BWABE:
— Owners of the Company — ARAEAA (21,844) (13,340) (3,747) (35,281) (35,866)
— Non-controling interests — FERES (593) 44 794 1,114 (19)
(22,437) (13,296) (2,953 (34,167) (35,885)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Total assets BEHE 97,059 78,879 113,294 48,087 55,471
Total liabilties afEeE (73,723) (36,564) (72,691) (42,409) (45,670)
Net assets EERE 23,336 42,315 40,603 5,678 9,801
Equity attributable to: RS
— Owners of the Company UN=IEZY=PN 20,761 40,326 38,658 4,527 9,764
— Non-controling interests — FERER 2,575 1,989 1,045 1,151 37
23,336 42,315 40,603 5,678 9,801
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